
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Tuesday, 27 September 2022.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Rural and 
Communities 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

     
 

 

Wednesday, 5 October 2022 at 2.00 pm 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House,  

St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Sarah Trotter (Chairman) 
Councillor Barry Dobson (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Richard Cleaver, Councillor Richard Dixon-Warren, Councillor Hilary 
Westropp, Councillor Ray Wootten and Vacancy (Alliance SK) 
 

Agenda 
 

 This meeting can be watched as a live stream, or at a later 
date, via the SKDC YouTube Channel 

 
 

 

1.   Public Speaking 
 

The Council welcomes engagement from members of the public. To speak at this 
meeting please register no later than 24 hours prior to the date of the meeting via 
democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

 

2.   Apologies for absence 
 

 

3.   Disclosure of Interest 
 

Members are asked to disclose any interest in matters for consideration at the meeting. 
 

 
 

4.   Minutes from the meeting held on 23 June 2022 
 

(Pages 3 - 14) 

5.   Minutes from the Joint Meeting of the Environment Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee and Rural and Communities Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on 27 June 2022 

(Pages 15 - 24) 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
https://www.youtube.com/user/SouthKestevenDC
mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk


 

 

6.   Updates from the previous meeting 
 

To receive updates on actions agreed at the previous meeting.  
 

(Pages 25 - 26) 

7.   Announcements or updates from the Leader of the Council, Cabinet 
Members or the Head of Paid Service 
 

 

8.   Housing Regulatory Compliance Update 
 

This report seeks to update Committee on actions to ensure regulatory 
compliance of the Council’s social housing landlord function following the 
non-compliance notice issued by the Regulator of Social Housing. 
 

(Pages 27 - 38) 

9.   Cost of Living Strategy 
 

This report sets out the steps that South Kesteven District Council and 
partners in the public, voluntary and community sector can take to provide 
support and advice to those who are being most impacted by the cost of 
living.  
 

(Pages 39 - 53) 

10.   Communication with tenants across the Council 
 

To update Committee on the activities undertaken to communicate with 
our tenants. The Charter for Social Housing Residents was published by 
the Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government on 17 
November 2020. We welcomed the paper and its focus on resident voice 
and influence, placing a greater emphasis on enhancing two-way 
communication with our tenants, to achieve greater accountability to 
residents. 
 

(Pages 55 - 98) 

11.   Work Programme 2022-2023 
 

To receive the Work Programme for 2021 – 2022  
 

(Pages 99 - 102) 

12.   Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent 
 

 



 

 

Minutes 
 

Rural and Communities Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Thursday, 23 June 2022, 2.00 pm          

Council Chamber - South Kesteven House,  
St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 

 

 

Committee Members present 
 

Councillor Sarah Trotter (Chairman) 
Councillor Barry Dobson (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Ray Wootten 
Councillor Philip Knowles 
Councillor Richard Dixon-Warren 
Councillor Hilary Westropp 
 
Officers in attendance 
 

Andrew Cotton (Director of Housing and Property) 
Craig Spence (Assistant Director of Housing) 
Debbie Roberts (Organisational Development and Change Manager) 
Jodie Archer (Head of Housing Services) 
Serena Brown (Sustainability and Climate Change Officer) 
Amy Pryde (Democratic Services Officer) 
 

 

1. Comments from Members of the Public 
 

There were none.  
 

2. Apologies for absence 
 

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor Richard Cleaver and 
Councillor Robert Reid.  

 
3. Disclosure of Interest 

 
There were none.  

 
4. Minutes from the meeting held on 28 April 2022 

 
Members considered the minutes of the meeting held on 28 April 2022. It was 
proposed, seconded, and AGREED that the minutes were a true and accurate 
record on the basis that minor amendments be made to minute number 61, 
Regulatory Compliance.  

 

3

Agenda Item 4



 
5. Updates from the previous meeting 

 
One Member queried the status of an action from the previous meeting: 

 
Whether the Grantham Charter Trustee had been contacted regarding Queen 
Jubilee activities. The Deputy Chief Executive would check as to whether they had 
been contacted or not. 

 
The status of the action was unknown; however, the Chairman would follow it up 
and provide a response once known. 

 
The Chairman provided an update on action 59 relating to the electronic agenda for 
the meeting of Lincolnshire Police and Crime Panel being sent to the Committee. It 
was confirmed that the meeting date had been postponed to the 24 June 2022. 
Once the electronic agenda was accessible, this would be forwarded onto the 
Committee.  

 
Councillor Richard Cleaver requested a response from the Cabinet Member to the 
suggestion from Chief Inspector Vickers that South Kesteven could consider more 
proactive use of legal powers in relation to anti-social behaviour which is mentioned 
in item 60 in the minutes of the last meeting. 

 
The Director of Housing and Property provided the Committee with a response on 
behalf of the Cabinet Member for Safer Communities: 

 
The Neighbourhoods Team and CCTV had worked in partnership with the Police 
and been involved in a number of targeted operations, the most recent being a 
night of proactive activity aimed at disrupting antisocial behaviour associated with 
vehicles in the Grantham area.  The operation saw one vehicle seized for having no 
valid insurance policy, a further two motorists reported for speeding, two more 
reported for having no MOT, and a further driver reported for driving without due 
care and attention. The operation also resulted in three people being issued £150 
fines for littering, directly related to vehicle ASB.  

 
Neighbourhoods Officers were also working with the police to use ANPR cameras 
to establish vehicle owner details and request vehicle stops as part of ongoing 
flytipping investigations and there are plans for a day of action with the Lincolnshire 
Police Rural Crime Team to tackle illegal waste sites and bogus waste carriers. 

 
The team had also carried out patrols in the Council’s parks to engage with young 
people, dog owners and users and help prevent antisocial behaviour and worked as 
part of a wider team during the covid19 pandemic, ensuring restrictions were 
complied with.  

 
Much of the work of the team was reacting to request for service from our residents. 
The team of 5 dealt with over 3,300 complaints in 2021, ranging from environmental 
crime, neighbour nuisance and pests. In many cases antisocial behaviour and 

4



neighbour nuisance complaints were resolved without the need for formal 
enforcement action, however, where this is necessary, legislation allows and 
evidence is available, action is taken.  

 
The action sheet was noted.  

 
One Member highlighted that an Officer from the Community Award group had 
confirmed attendance to regular Parish Council meetings.  

 
Furthermore, it had been requested that a PCSO or a representative of Lincolnshire 
Police attended occasional Parish Council meetings in Bourne. However, no further 
communication had been heard.  

 
ACTION: For the Chairman to query the lack of attendance from PCSOs/ 
representative of Lincolnshire Police at Parish Council meetings.  

 
6. Q4 Year End Performance 

 
The Organisational Development and Change Manager presented the report that 
outlined the end of year data performance for 2021/22. 

 
It was noted that 11 actions were rated green, 2 were rated amber and 2 rated red.  

 
The actions related to two corporate priorities: ‘Healthy and strong communities’ 
and ‘Housing that meets the needs of all residents. The actions were set out in the 
report, appendix 1.  

 
One Member queried whether there was a benchmark in place for the status 
colours and at what point an action would move from amber to green for example.  

 
The Organisational Development and Change Manager confirmed that actions 
rated amber were generally off-target from a green rating by 10% or were expected 
to meet milestones that were delayed. Actions rated red were falling significantly 
below or they were overdue and did not have an achievable timely target. Green 
actions had met their target or over-achieved. 

 
A query was raised on the numerical order of the actions, as numbers appeared to 
be missing.  

 
It was confirmed that some of the action responsibilities were reported to other 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees.  

 
Concern was raised over the action rated red relating to partnership working with 
the housing market. A query was then raised on how many houses needed to be 
built per year in the district.  

 

5



The Director of Housing and Property highlighted that the action related to delivery 
of housing across the district. Further work would be undertaken to benchmark the 
number of houses expected to be built per year.  

 
ACTION: For the Director of Housing and Property to liaise with colleagues to 
establish and compare the action benchmark with other authorities on what is 
expected to achieve a green rated action. 

 
Further information on the action relating to increasing the supply of high quality, 
sustainable Council houses was requested.  

 
The Director of Housing and Property referred the Committee to the comments in 
the report from last year’s performance. Properties had been completed at Meadow 
Close in Bourne, and properties at Trinity Road, Stamford had been completed and 
allocated. The target of 15 new build Council houses had been achieved.  

 
It was confirmed that a development at Swinegate in Grantham had been through 
the Planning process for development of Council properties. Flats had also been 
completed at Riverside in Grantham.  

 
The Committee were reminded that the KPI’s around ‘Housing that meets the 
needs of all residents’ were set before the previous financial year, when there was 
limited certainty in terms of direction of travel within the Council’s housing service.  

 
One Member congratulated all Officers involved within the Mental Health Group and 
works around looking after vulnerable residents.   

 
It was highlighted that successes were notable where targets were subjective rather 
than specific.  

 
Specific numerical targets were requested on what the Council should expect to 
achieve over the next 1,2 and 3 years in relation to affordable house building by the 
Council and by social housing.  

 
The Director of Housing and Property confirmed that the requested figures would 
be discussed at a joint scrutiny meeting of Finance, Economic Development and 
Corporate Services and Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees.    

 
AGREED: 

 
1. Note the contents of the 2021/22 year-end performance report.  
2. Members to consider if any concerns highlighted by the report require 

additional investigation to be added to the work programme. 
 
 
 

6



7. Housing Allocation Policy 
 

The Director of Housing and Property presented the report that outlined the Draft 
Housing Allocation Policy. The policy was a priority in terms of the Council’s 
homelessness and housing option functions. 

 
The existing policy was adopted in 2019, however, was not up to date in terms of 
legislation around domestic abuse and the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017. The 
existing policy was difficult to follow and in some cases contradictory around 
property bedroom eligibility.  

 
The delivery mechanism of the existing policy was based on matching applicants 
from the housing register to void properties.  

 
Workshops had taken place for Members to go through some issues and discuss 
case studies. Feedback had been captured from the workshops and the Council 
had consulted with registered social landlords and other stakeholders.   

 
The newly refreshed and revised allocation policy had been made easier to follow, 
by reducing the number of bands to 4 for housing needs. The property eligibility had 
been refined. There had been a proposal to eventually utilise a choice-based letting 
system, where a vacant property is advertised, and applicants could bid for the 
property.  

 
Concern was raised over the choice-based letting system and that some residents 
may struggle to access the system using technology. A query was raised on how 
the Council would keep in contact with residents that may not be familiar with 
technology.  

 
Members sought clarity that the choice-based letting system would not increase 
void times and void rent loss. Officers confirmed this was not the case.  

 
One Member welcomed the two-way communication improvement outlined within 
the report as communication in the past had been less than satisfactory.  

 
The Chairman requested further information on the allocation policy timeline of 
implementation. 

 
The Assistant Director of Housing confirmed that upon adoption of the new 
allocations policy, the choice-based letting system would then follow a procurement 
process. If the procurement process was completed by August/September 2022, 
the system would be live by the end of 2022.  

 
The current system utilised impacted voids as there were a higher number of 
refusals due to the Council making the choice of a new tenant from the housing 
register rather than the incoming tenant choosing the property. 

 

7



In terms of a new choice-based letting system, different suppliers were being 
explored on the market as part of a procurement exercise. The implementation of 
the new system would run alongside the current implementation of the Council’s 
housing management system.  

 
One Member highlighted that the 90-day timeframe for voids between vacation of a 
property and new occupancy. A query was raised on whether the time of changing 
heat sources in the houses could be decreased in order to get the houses back on 
the market. 

 
The Assistant Director of Housing reminded Members that a comprehensive Voids 
Policy was brought to the Committee at the previous meeting. Void performance in 
2021 was just over 83 days, at present the void performance was at 59.02 days for 
the financial year.  

 
One Member queried as to whether there was a notice period provided by an 
occupant prior to vacating the property.  

 
A four week notice period was confirmed by the Assistant Director of Housing.  

 
The Chairman welcomed the provision of bungalows and the allocation of these 
being based on housing need. 

 
It was emphasised that residents could contact the Housing Options team if they 
were unable to access choice-based letting system by using technology, the system 
would bid on the applicant’s behalf to meet their registered criteria.  

 
The Director of Housing and Property noted that the properties on the choice-based 
letting system were advertised and applicants could review all available properties 
across the district, rather than Officer’s being responsible for connections from 
matching lists.  

 
One Member was pleased to see armed forces personnel priority included within 
the policy.  

 
It was suggested that the policy be revisited, and the possibility was queried as to 
whether Members could retrospectively amend certain aspects of the policy.  

 
The Director of Housing and Property confirmed that an update could be included 
on the Work programme for 6 months’ post implementation, and a regular annual 
report in terms of the previous financial year to see comparison with the 
demographic of the district and, for example, what allocations had been completed 
through the armed forces route. 

 
It was confirmed that minor amendments would be delegated to the Director of 
Housing and Property in consultation with the portfolio holder in response to 
legislation or changes in certain regulations.  

 

8



The Chairman noted that Member workshops could be utilised to raise concerns 
and answer any further questions relating to housing.  

 
All Member briefings were available in terms of the housing service and progress. A 
Member working party had also been created for a cross-party representation of the 
whole district, where immediate feedback, suggestions, comments, service failures 
and complaints were discussed.  

 
Service improvement officers also monitored a housing enquiry email service as the 
central point of contact to support members with their enquiries from constituents.  

 
A query was raised on whether the Council could work in partnership the private 
rented sector.  

 
The Director of Housing and Property confirmed that the Council does work with the 
private rented sector. It was confirmed that the private rented sector do not often 
approach the Council due to a reluctance in terms of their perception of residents 
on the Council’s housing register as tenants.  

 
It was suggested that the relationship and connections between the Council and 
private rented sector be promoted.  

 
It was confirmed that the traditional route for a private rented sector landlord would 
be to engage with a letting agent, who would source their own potential tenants.  

 
Members thanked the report author for the in-depth report.  

 
ACTION: For an update report to come back to the Committee in 6 months’ 
time.  

 
It was proposed, seconded and AGREED that the Committee:  

 
1. Notes the content of the report, the proposed Allocations Policy, 
consultation responses and Equality Impact Assessment;  
2. Provides comment and feedback on the Allocations Policy and Choice 
Based Lettings proposal; and  
3. Supports submission of the Allocation Policy for Cabinet’s consideration 
and approval. 

 
8. Regulatory compliance 

 
The Director of Housing and Property presented the report that had been a 
standing item at every Committee meeting during the period of the regulatory 
notice.  

 
Key points were outlined as set out in the report: 

 

9



• Conclusion of the full tenant consultation exercise, including ‘The Big Listen 
Survey’. The survey would feed into the financial figures and will build part of 
the Council’s HRA business plan.  

• Completion of a full stock condition survey in 12 months. The survey would 
also feed into the financial figures and will build part of the Council’s HRA 
business plan. 

• Tenant feedback (‘Rant and Rave’) had gone live and positive performance 
and feedback had been received from tenants.  

• Aiming to overcome regulatory notice in late 2022 by completing an audit 
review process. 

• The team had continued to meet monthly with the regulator. The previous 
meeting consisted of positive feedback in terms of progress.  
 

Current figures from the compliance information summary showed improvement. 
Legionella, gas and electrical were rated amber. Asbestos (re-inspections), fire risk 
assessments and lift inspections were rated green, meaning they were 100% 
compliant. 

 
One Member noted that the survey results presented that 25% of people were 
generally dissatisfied with one aspect. A query was raised on what expectation 
would be classed as reasonable on a satisfaction survey.  

 
It was confirmed that the Council worked with House Mark, who provide 
benchmarking services. 85% satisfaction would be the top quartile of performance.  

 
A query was raised on the electrical testing percentage of 86.58% and whether the 
Council had only tested that number of dwellings or whether that was the number of 
dwellings compliant.  

 
The Assistant Director of Housing noted that the percentage meant that the Council 
did not have a valid current certificate, and some properties had not been re-visited 
within the five-year time scale. It was further reported that 5-10% of properties had 
access issues.  

 
Legionella testing was carried out via a flushing regime on water taps in communal 
areas, where the frequency may be reduced. At present, all registered properties 
were audited and compliant. Legionella testing would be re-surveyed in November 
2022.  

 
AGREED: 

 
1. That the Committee notes the latest compliance position following the 

ongoing meetings with the Regulator of Social Housing.  
2. That the Committee receives a further update report at its next scheduled 

meeting. 
 
 

10



9. Fuel Poverty Update 
 

The Assistant Director of Housing presented the report that outlined current 
pressures regarding fuel prices and inflation. The government data set out in the 
report were from 2019/20 and had been set on a regional basis. 

 
The total proportion of fuel per household in East Midlands was 9.2% compared 
with the highest in the northwest of 14.7% and the lowest in the northeast of 5.5%. 
The data outlined how fuel poverty was addressed and how it would be quantified 
around energy efficiency of properties, the income level of households, energy 
prices and the disposable income available to a household following the costings. 

 
The overall level of fuel poverty in England in 2020 was 13.2%, based on 3.16 
million households.  Due to the current increase of energy prices, the percentage 
would have excessively increased.  

 
As a Council and a social landlord with a large stock, the aim would be to help 
owners and occupiers to access funding available to enhance their properties. Any 
national funding would be utilised to deliver energy efficiency projects. 

 
Two projects were currently undergoing within the Council: Green Homes Local 
Authority Delivery (phase 2) and the Sustainable Warmth Fund. A new boiler 
upgrade scheme was in the process of roll-out.  

 
The second wave of the social housing decarbonisation fund was currently actively 
being explored.  

 
A query was raised as to why solar energy was not explored when taking into 
consideration fuel poverty.  

 
It was clarified that solar energy had been referred to as PV (Photovoltaics).  

 
The Chairman queried the timescale of the installation process of new heat pumps. 

 
The Assistant Director of Housing highlighted that it may differ between properties. 
The replacement of an existing oil-fired system in a serviceable condition would 
take 2-5 days maximum. However, replacing a storage heating unit or electrical 
heating would include undertaking works with pipes in the property and would 
therefore take 2-3 weeks maximum.  

 
It was highlighted that installation of an air source heat pump required an external 
wall in the property not in contact with habitable space.  

 
Assurance was requested that residents would not be without a source of heating 
through the colder months.  

 
The Assistant Director of housing reassured the Committee that funding deadlines 
had been extended for completion until the 31 August 2022, therefore, all eligible 

11



properties should be completed by the end of August 2022. The properties with the 
lowest performance at present had been targeted.  

 
A query was raised in relation to efficiency of various types of heating technologies. 

 
ACTION: For the Assistant Director of Housing to provide data to the 
Committee on efficiency of various types of heating technologies. 

 
AGREED: 

 
1. Notes the position and current projects ongoing to address this issue.  
2. Supports the Council seeking any future additional funding streams and 

grants to help address this matter. 
 

10. Homes for Ukraine Scheme Verbal Update 
 

The Head of Housing Services provided the Committee with a verbal update in 
relation to the crisis in Ukraine and the support the Council were offering Ukrainian 
families. 

 
At the time of the meeting, the Council had 132 hosts that had been identified 
across the district. 85 families had been accommodated as part of the scheme.  

 
South Kesteven District Council’s responsibilities: 

 

• Ensure that accommodation checks were undertaken. 

• Collect information for DBS checks. 

• Processing payments for guest arrivals and the hosts.  
 

Lincolnshire County Council’s responsibilities: 
 

• Well-being services. 

• Health and education provision.  

• DBS check completion. 

• Ensuring that families arriving from Ukraine were accessing the appropriate 
services offered.  
 

The voluntary sector had been supporting host placements as part of the scheme.  
 

It was highlighted that the Council had an internal operational group as part of the 
district’s offer to address any problems and proactively maintain the placement.  

 
The Chairman thanked host families and all Officers involved for the commitment 
and hard work on the scheme.  

 
A query was raised on whether the correct paperwork was being sent in efficiently. 

 

12



It was confirmed that challenges were still faced regarding duplication of 
information. The Council had a robust processes in place to ensure duplication of 
information was identified. It was noted that operational issues arose at the 
beginning of the scheme that had been resolved. 

 
The Chairman queried as to whether the Ukrainian families were being encouraged 
to become involved in local communities.  

 
The Head of Housing Services assured that there had been a strong community 
response and voluntary work taking place. It was suggested that more good news 
stories should be advertised.  

 
ACTION: For the Head of Housing Services to link into community groups to 
gather and forward positive examples onto the Committee.  

 
One Member noted that he had received an invitation to the Jubilee Church, where 
49 Ukrainian residents were due to attend in traditional costumes and perform a 
dance routine. The event was due to take place on Saturday 25 June between 2pm 
and 5pm.  

 
11. Work Programme 2022-23 

 
The Committee noted the Work Programme 2022-23. 

 
The Committee requested that the following item be added to the Work 
Programme:  

 

• Regulatory Compliance (September 2022). 

• Capital programme – heating (September 2022). 

• Progress report on Housing Allocation Policy and Choice-based lettings 
(December 2022). 

• Communication with tenants across the Council. 
 

The Director of Housing and Property suggested that an item be brought to 
Committee on the communication with tenants across the Council; including 
telephone services, out of hours and the new housing management system that 
had been implemented.  

  
12. Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special circumstances, 

decides is urgent 
 

There were none.  
 

13. Close of meeting 
 

The Chairman closed the meeting at 3:54pm.  
 
 

13



This page is intentionally left blank

14



 

Meeting of the 
Joint Meeting of the 
Environment Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee and 
Rural and Communities 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
Extraordinary Meeting 
 
Monday, 27 June 2022, 2.00 pm 

 

 

 
Committee Members present 
 

 

Councillor Ashley Baxter 
Councillor Richard Cleaver 
Councillor John Cottier 
Councillor Phil Dilks 
Councillor Barry Dobson 
Councillor Gloria Johnson 
Councillor Philip Knowles 
Councillor Nikki Manterfield 
Councillor Sarah Trotter 
Councillor Hilary Westropp 
Councillor Hannah Westropp 
 

 

Cabinet Members present 
 
Councillor Adam Stokes (Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Leisure 
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew (Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor 
Economy) 
Councillor Mark Whittington (Cabinet Member for Waste Services and Climate 
Change 
 
Officers  
 
Richard Wyles (Chief Finance Officer) 
Nicola McCoy-Brown (Director of Growth and Culture) 
Graham Watts (Assistant Director of Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer) 
Chris Prime (Interim Communications Manager) 
Ian Yates (External Consultant) 
Mark Jones (Project Lead) 
Jordan Brooks (IT Helpdesk Engineer) 
 

 

15

Agenda Item 5



 

1. Apologies for Absence 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Richard Dixon-Warren, Ben 
Green, Robert Reid and Ray Wootten. 

 
2. Disclosure of Interests 

 
No disclosure of interests were made. 

 
3. Grounds Maintenance Options Appraisal 

 
Prior to the commencement of consideration of this item, a point of order was raised 
which questioned why the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate 
Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee or the Companies Committee had not 
been given the opportunity to consider this report given it related to the 
procurement of a service currently provided by EnvironmentSK Ltd. 

 
The Chairman stated this may be explained as part of the presentation of the 
report. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Waste Services and Climate Change presented the report 
which provided detail on the work undertaken to develop a new specification for the 
Council’s grounds maintenance service and invited consideration of providing a 
recommendation to Cabinet on the way forward in respect of the future delivery of 
the service. 
 
The Council’s grounds maintenance service had been provided by EnvironmentSK 
Ltd, a wholly owned Council company, since 1 March 2019, with responsibility for 
the grounds maintenance of Council-owned land, including General Fund and 
Housing Revenue Account land.  
 
Being a predominately rural district, 3% of the land being maintained was in urban 
areas, with 97% being in rural locations. Other areas were also maintained, 
including 21 closed churchyards and three parks in Grantham, the total cost of the 
service being £1.016 million for the current financial year. This was split between 
£428,000 in respect of the Housing Revenue Account and £588,000 in respect of 
the General Fund. Further details regarding the services provided to the Housing 
Revenue Account and General Fund were set out in the report at paragraphs 1.5 to 
1.10. 
 
In line with the Council’s management of its finances and a commitment to run 
services more efficiently and effectively, whilst taking best value into consideration, 
it was considered necessary to review the contract in place with EnvironmentSK Ltd 
and the management of the grounds maintenance service moving forward. 
 
Mr Ian Yates, external consultant, was appointed in order to develop a new grounds 
maintenance specification. He delivered a presentation setting out a framework 
which could be used to test the market in respect of future service delivery. A 
demonstration of the Statmap system was presented to the Committee, which was 
a detailed digital mapping tool able to provide an accurate measurement of all 
grassed areas, verges, hedges and other areas currently maintained. This was 

16



 

considered as an essential element of managing the contract, given the district 
consisted of 365,000 square miles with at least 1.5 million square metres of grass 
requiring cutting. These were fragmented across the whole district, made up of 
individual pockets of areas requiring maintenance as part of the contract. 
Thousands of elements of data were able to be managed through the Statmap 
system, which had been updated and refreshed so that each site in the district was 
accurately represented. The system was a visual tool which was easy to use, 
especially when measuring sites and calculating maintenance programmes, 
including detailed breakdowns of the work required at each location. 
 
The Chief Finance Officer provided an overview of the specification requirements 
which defined the key works to be delivered. These were set out in paragraphs 1.19 
and 1.20 of the report. As part of the revised specification, work had been 
undertaken to align the levels of service received by the Housing Revenue Account 
and General Fund, recognising that Housing Revenue Account land currently 
received more regular cuts due to its higher financial contribution. This alignment 
meant there would not be two different standards of service, making it much less 
complicated for contractors. The proposed realigned standards consisted of the 
following: 
 

• Amenities grass open spaces (General Fund) – retention of 10 cuts per year on 
a cut and drop basis, whereby cuttings were not collected 

• Amenities grass open spaces (Housing Revenue Account) – reduction from 14 
cuts per year, to 10 cuts per year on a cut and drop basis, whereby cuttings 
were not collected 

• Highway verges – retention of the existing level of service and alignment with 
the frequency of cuts chosen for the General Fund amenity grassed areas of 10 
cuts per year  

• Closed churchyards – retention of the existing level of service and alignment 
with the frequency of cuts chosen for the General Fund amenity grassed areas 
of 10 cuts per year 

• Wild meadows (General Fund) – retention of the arrangements currently in 
place 

• Hedges (General Fund) – increase in the number of cuts from once per year to 
twice per year in line with the current service delivered to Housing Revenue 
Account land 

• Hedges (Housing Revenue Account) – retention of the arrangements currently 
in place 

• Sheltered housing schemes grass (Housing Revenue Account) – there was 
currently some flexibility and choice in relation to sheltered housing schemes 
grass which could allow bids to come forward prior to making informed 
decisions. The current standard was 14 cuts per year, with the first half being 
on a cut and collection basis, whereby cuttings were collected and taken offsite, 
and the second half being on a cut and drop basis. The new standard could 
either take the form of 16 cuts on a cut and drop basis or in line with the 
General Fund standard of 10 cuts per year on a cut and drop basis. It was 
recognised that there was a disproportionate cost associated with the cut and 
collect service due to specialist equipment and the time taken to complete the 
activity at the required standard 

• Council homes assisted gardens – retention of the current frequency of grass 
and hedge cuts, however, consideration would be given to a height reduction 

17



 

programme. Any such changes would require the undertaking of statutory 
consultation  

• Parks – minor modifications proposed to service specifications and ability to 
invite alternative proposals to deliver cost savings whilst maintaining Green 
Flag status. It was emphasised that none of these minor modifications would 
detrimentally impact the achievement or maintenance of Green Flag status at 
any of the parks 

• Uffington cricket and Empingham playing fields – removal of these sites from 
the specification as the locations would be transferred to Stamford Town 
Council from April 2023 when the new contract took place 

 
An earlier question was reiterated in respect of why this item had not been referred 
to the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee or the Companies Committee. 
 
The Chairman explained this report was focusing on the function and practicalities 
of the service, how it would be delivered through the revised specification and use 
of a mapping system which could help contractors understand the details of every 
area maintained in the district to make the service more efficient. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Waste Services and Climate Change provided further 
clarity that this report had been commissioned from the perspective of South 
Kesteven District Council as a customer, reviewing the way forward and the options 
available in respect of the grounds maintenance service. Referring to the options 
contained within the report, the options were noted as follows: 
 

• Retention of the services of EnvironmentSK Ltd 

• Accessing the grounds maintenance supplier market 

• Insourcing the service 
 
It was restated that no preferred option had been identified and the key 
considerations would be operational efficiency and value for money. The next stage 
of the process would facilitate options appraisals and submission of full business 
cases. 
 
The principal reason this item had not been referred to the Finance, Economic 
Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee was 
because currently there were no details of what the costs associated with delivering 
the service were going to be. This information would become available as part of 
the options appraisal which was the next stage of the process.  
 
A suggestion was made that the performance of the current contract should have 
been evaluated and assessed, taking into account that the costs associated with 
delivery of the current and previous contract were available, and this should be 
reviewed by the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee given that, ultimately, this was a financial 
decision. 
 
In response it was explained the reason the report had been submitted to a joint 
meeting of the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Rural and 
Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee was to consider the options 

18



 

available now that full mapping and data of the complete area of the district had 
been completed, with new proposed specifications for the future of the service 
having been developed. These could be costed more effectively, with the current 
provider, other operators in the market and potentially an in-house service being 
able to determine how much it would cost to deliver the service at the required 
specification and standard. Once this information had been received as part of the 
next stage of the process and those comparisons could be made, it may then be 
necessary for the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to become involved in considerations. 
 
A comment was made regarding the unsightly nature of a cut and drop service, 
highlighting cuttings from domestic properties were used in anaerobic digesters to 
generate electricity and whether the Council was missing an opportunity. It was 
suggested that this should be included as part of the options being considered. 
 
A question was raised regarding the competitive procurement process and at what 
stage the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee would become involved prior to a decision being taken by 
Cabinet.  
 
The Chief Finance Officer explained there was currently nothing for the Finance, 
Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
to scrutinise. This was due to the cost of providing the service against the revised 
specification from sources outlined in the various options set out in the report not 
yet being known. The updated specification needed to be priced against the 
currently supplier, other suppliers in the market or an in-house alternative to 
ascertain the anticipated cost of delivering that service. It was clarified that, as part 
of the process, the cost of delivering the revised specification may fall within the 
existing budget provision, in which case there would not be any necessity for further 
scrutiny of the finances associated with the service. However, if the cost of 
delivering the revised specification exceeded the budget and provision in the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy, the Council would need to consider whether to 
allocate further resources to that service. This process would involve the Finance, 
Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
as part of the normal annual budget setting process. Alternatively, it may be 
necessary to re-assess the specification of the service and reduce, for example, the 
number of cuts to bring the cost in line with the existing budget provision. It was 
necessary to undertake the procurement process as recommended in the report in 
order that the options identified could be costed up. 
 
A question was raised regarding hard areas, as set out in paragraph 1.20 of the 
report, regarding council-owned car parks and whether they were included in the 
‘hard area’ definition. It was confirmed that hard areas did include Council-owned 
car parks and were listed on the Statmap system, as well as being referenced in the 
updated specification with various trigger points dictating when specific works would 
be required.  
 
Reference was made to questions raised at previous meetings of the Companies 
Committee regarding average costs of labour and charge-out costs for labour in 
respect of EnvironmentSK Ltd and the grounds maintenance contract to calculate 
the margin and real cost of the service outside of any profit generated by the 

19



 

company. To date an answer to these questions had not been provided. However, 
the work undertaken on a revised specification was welcomed, as was the options 
appraisal which sought to look beyond the existing service provider. It was agreed 
that cost and quality were equally as important, and this process provided an 
opportunity to undertake a thorough piece of work to determine the best way of 
delivering the service. 
 
Questions were raised regarding the proposed consultation in respect of a 
workshop with all Councillors scheduled to be held two weeks prior to the final 
outcome being presented to Cabinet. It was suggested this did not leave sufficient 
time for the outcomes of the workshop to be taken into account and feed into 
proposals for consideration by Cabinet. 
 
The demonstration of the Statmap system highlighted the different pieces of 
maintenance work required across the district. It was believed it may be more cost 
effective to split pieces of work out into different contracts, especially differentiating 
smaller and larger jobs, offering local providers the opportunity to undertake 
smaller, local works. 
 
The Cabinet Member appreciated that concerns had been expressed regarding 
EnvironmentSK Ltd at previous Companies Committee meetings, however, they 
could not speak on the company’s behalf at this meeting, given the focus was on 
services delivered to the Council as a customer. 
 
In response to the suggestion of splitting different pieces of work, whilst it was 
accepted various providers may be able to do different aspects of the work better 
than others, consideration needed to be given to economies of scale associated 
with only having one major external provider. 
 
The recommendation in the report asked the joint Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee to support all options, which a Member stated they would be unable to 
agree to as they felt it would not be possible to support all of the options set out in 
the report. They welcomed the suggestion raised earlier in the meeting that local 
providers could be procured for smaller works as part of contracting out the service.  
 
A concern was expressed in the recommended commencement of the procurement 
process before knowing what was in place now in respect of EnvironmentSK Ltd’s 
costs, and ultimately whether the company was making a loss or profit. It was 
understood that the company made a £130,000 loss in its first year and a £40,000 
loss in its second year of operation, with a loan of £500,000 being provided by the 
Council to help establish the company. A two-part question was raised as to what 
would happen to the company should it not be awarded the contract as part of the 
procurement exercise for the Council’s grounds maintenance service and in respect 
of repayment of the loan. 
 
A further question was raised regarding fuel costs and whether any providers had 
contacted the Council to report they were unable to deliver services in accordance 
with the original specification from a cost perspective. 
 
Clarification was sought over the concerns previously expressed regarding 
EnvironmentSK Ltd and whether the company was providing value for money. 

20



 

A Member expressed their preference of retaining the service with the current 
wholly Council-owned provider or offering an in-house service, ensuring that profit 
stayed within the Council as opposed to external providers. 
 
The Chief Finance Officer explained the report outlined the business case as to why 
it was considered appropriate for the market to be invited to bid for the work and 
establish whether there were economies of scale and efficiencies that could be 
achieved. It would provide transparency, benchmarking and assess value for 
money in order that consideration could be given to what the market, as well as the 
existing provider, could offer against the revised specification, which since its 
review meant there would not be any ambiguity or inaccuracies associated with 
pricing. 
 
In terms of the procurement process, it was reported this was not an onerous 
process as it would be delivered through an ESPO framework. This meant, in 
practice, all due diligence of potential bidders and the necessary documentation 
had already been undertaken. It was important the process was thorough and there 
was no suggestion the Council was only going out to the market as part of a 
benchmarking exercise, which was not the case. 
 
Regarding the current provider, there were potential diseconomies of scale as, 
despite the best endeavours of EnvironmentSK Ltd, the company had not been 
able to penetrate the private market solely due to the scale and inadequate profit 
margins associated with additional works. Its fixed costs and fixed assets meant it 
was unable to scale up and absorb work at a rate which may have been required in 
order to act more competitively. 
 
A question was raised as to whether there was flexibility in the specification or this 
could be tweaked as part of the procurement process. 
 
It was acknowledged that the ESPO framework did reduce the burden of paperwork 
associated with the tendering process, however, to support the Council’s principal 
objective of being the best place to live, work and visit, a concern was expressed 
the framework would exclude businesses local to the district. A question was raised 
whether local businesses could be encouraged to provide a price for the contract 
outside of the ESPO framework. 
 
The Chief Finance Officer emphasised the Authority had to be mindful of its 
Contract Procedure Rules, as well as respective public regulations. The contract 
was more than £1 million per year over a period of five years, representing a 
significant financial commitment for the Council. Contract Procedure Rules would 
not allow the award of such a contract to be limited only to local businesses or 
providers. The suggested process of breaking down the contract into component 
parts would result in significant diseconomies of scale and pose difficulties in 
respect of delivery and monitoring. The use of multiple contractors would inevitably 
lead to a risk of the distortion in quality of service on a geographical basis across 
the District. For this reason, it was therefore recommended the contract be offered 
in its entirety for the whole of the Council’s ground maintenance service. 
 
Regarding the ESPO framework, this was a national framework which consisted of 
a thorough vetting process in terms of a provider’s financial resilience, their ability to 

21



 

upscale and capacity within their structures to ensure delivery of the specification 
was not compromised.  
 
A question was raised regarding the loan provided to EnvironmentSK Ltd, which a 
Member understood was actually nearly £600,000, querying how much had been 
paid back in respect of interest and the principal loan. 
 
An amendment to the recommendation was suggested to reflect the options should 
be investigated as opposed to supported. 
 
It was reported the loan centred around the procurement of the assets that 
EnvironmentSK Ltd needed to operate, including vehicles, mowers and other 
equipment and was a commercial loan between the Council and the company. The 
loan was not paid back out of any profit made by the company and had been built 
into the company’s business model as one of its costs. Confirmation was provided 
that the company had requested a loan holiday midway through last year to allow 
its cashflow to restabilise. In the event of the incumbent provider not being awarded 
the new contract, assets would be appropriated back to the Council. If the service 
returned in-house, the assets would be transferred back to the Council. In the event 
that another external provider was awarded the contract, it was highly likely they 
would want or need the equipment to ensure the necessary infrastructure was in 
place to deliver the required specification. In this scenario, the assets would be sold 
to the new provider, offsetting a proportion of the loan against income received from 
the sale. 
 
In response, a comment was made the assets would have depreciated in that time.  
 
A comment was made regarding the previous external provider who had managed 
the contract, prior to EnvironmentSK Ltd, that the service at that time was not 
delivered to a high standard. A key problem was that the provider was located in 
Cheshire with teams being sent from Doncaster to address urgent issues in the 
south of the district. It was felt this was not representative of the Council’s 
commitment to safeguarding the environment. In terms of the ESPO framework, the 
headquarters for the nearest grounds maintenance provider was Northamptonshire 
so the option regarding external providers would result in services that were not 
local, responsive or flexible. The belief was an in-house service, or service operated 
by a Council-owned company, would provide greater flexibility regarding any 
necessary variances to the specification or contract, than would be the case with an 
external provider. 
 
The Cabinet Member was asked to clarify their concerns regarding EnvironmentSK 
Ltd’s delivery of the service in accordance with the current contract. They reported 
having previously raised concerns at the Companies Committee regarding 
profitability and various aspects of the specification and works, which was one of 
the reasons why this review of the specification and options appraisal had been 
sought. They emphasised having no preconceived opinion as to the final decision in 
terms of which of the options in the report should be supported.  
 
A Member explained, in the event of an external provider being appointed, the 
likelihood would be they would take over a local depot, staff and equipment and 

22



 

effectively run it as a local business. The location of the provider’s headquarters 
would therefore not necessarily have any impact on delivery of the service.  
 
In terms of EnvironmentSK Ltd, a Member suggested the only way it could have 
made a profit was to secure external revenue and provide the service at a price 
which was higher than it cost to deliver it. Unfortunately, it was apparent the 
external revenue was not there at the correct price for the company to be 
successful. 
 
Clarification was sought that staff would be consulted prior to the commencement of 
the options appraisal process.  
 
The Chief Finance Officer confirmed the specification had been developed in such 
a way that it could be modified depending upon the costs that ultimately came back 
as part of the procurement process. Potential bidders would cost the contract on the 
frequency of cuts in line with the overall budget envelope that the Council was 
operating within. At this stage a contract would not have been awarded so it was 
perfectly reasonable for there to be a process of engagement between prospective 
bidders and the Council to potentially modify the frequency and complexity of the 
specification to suit or fall within the original budget.  
 
It was reported that, should an external provider be awarded the contract, existing 
staff would TUPE across. The location of the current EnvironmentSK Ltd operation 
was where the previous external grounds maintenance provider had operated from. 
It was expected any new provider would seek to do the same ensuring they were 
anchored within the district and had a local presence. 
 
In considering the recommendation contained within the report, it was suggested 
and agreed the words ‘investigation of the possible options’ be used instead of the 
words ‘support the options’.  
 
A further suggestion was made the words ‘market testing’ should be used instead of 
the word ‘procurement’. In response, the Chief Finance Officer explained the term 
‘market testing’ may suggest that the Council was only undertaking this process to 
receive the information, whereas a commitment to undertake a full procurement 
process represented a more serious intention to understand what the market could 
offer in respect of delivering the Council’s grounds maintenance service.  
 
Further discussion followed on a potential alternative option to split the contract into 
different parts, enabling more than one contractor to bid for respective works, as 
opposed to one large contract. It was acknowledged there may be opportunities in 
respect of local Parish or Town Councils, over time, to consider devolving some 
responsibility from South Kesteven District Council’s grounds maintenance 
specification. However, at this stage it was recommended the options set out in the 
report should be progressed. It was emphasised the award of a contract based on 
these options would not prevent conversations on this basis taking place at a later 
stage. 
 
Having been proposed, seconded and voted upon, it was AGREED: 
 

23



 

1. That the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Rural and 
Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee supports the 
investigation of the possible options in respect of the future delivery 
options of the grounds maintenance service and recommends to Cabinet 
that procurement commences to assess the future delivery options of the 
grounds maintenance service. 

 
Councillors Ashley Baxter and Phil Dilks requested that their vote against this 
resolution be recorded in the minutes. 
 
 
 
 
The meeting closed at 15:43 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

24



Action Sheet 

Rural & Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Actions from meeting of 23 June 2022 

 

Min 
no 

 
 

Agenda item 
 

Action 
 

Assigned to 
 
 
 

Status 
 
 
 

Outcome 

5 Updates from 
the previous 

meeting 

For the Chairman to query the lack of 
attendance from PCSOs/ 

representative of Lincolnshire Police at 
Parish Council meetings.  

Chairman  
(Councillor Sarah Trotter) 

Complete Verbal update to be provided 
at Committee meeting. 

6 Q4 Year End 
Performance 

 

For the Director of Housing and 
Property to liaise with colleagues to 
establish and compare the action 

benchmark with other authorities on 
what is expected to achieve a green 

rated action. 
 

Andrew Cotton 
 (Director of Housing and 

Property)  

Complete Email sent on 25 July 2022 
by Democracy on behalf of 
the Director of Housing & 

Property 

7 Housing 
Allocation 

Policy 
 

For an update report to come back to 
the Committee in 6 months’ time. 

Andrew Cotton 
 (Director of Housing and 

Property) 

Ongoing 6 months 

9 Fuel Poverty 
Data 

For the Assistant Director of Housing to 
provide data to the Committee on 

efficiency of various types of heating 
technologies. 

Craig Spence 
 (Assistant Director of  
Housing and Property) 

Complete Email sent on 13 July 2022 
by Assistant Director of 

Housing 

10 Homes for 
Ukraine 

Scheme Verbal 
Update 

 

For the Head of Housing Services to 
link into community groups to gather 

and forward positive examples onto the 
Committee. 

 

Jodie Archer  
(Head of Housing Services) 

Ongoing Verbal update to be provided 
at Committee meeting. 

25

A
genda Item

 6



Action Sheet 

Rural & Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Actions from meeting of 23 June 2022 

 

 

11 Work 
Programme 

2022-23 

The Committee requested that the 
following item be added to the Work 

Programme: 
 

• Regulatory Compliance 
(September 2022). 

• Capital programme – heating 
(September 2022). 

• Progress report on Housing 
Allocation Policy and Choice-

based lettings (December 
2022). 

• Communication with tenants 
across the Council. 

 

Democratic Services Complete  15 September 2022  

26



 
 

       

Rural and Communities 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee  
 
 

15 September 2022   
 
Report of: Councillor Robert Reid 
Cabinet Member for Housing and 
Property 
 

 

 

Housing Regulatory Compliance Update  
 

Report Author 

Craig Spence, Assistant Director of Housing  

 
 craig.spence@southkesteven.gov.uk 

  

 

 

This report seeks to update Committee on actions to ensure regulatory compliance of the 
Council’s social housing landlord function following the non-compliance notice issued by 
the Regulator of Social Housing.  
 

Recommendations 

 

That Cabinet: 

1. That the Committee notes the latest compliance position following the 
ongoing meetings with the Regulator of Social Housing.   

2. That the Committee receives a further update report at its next scheduled 
meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

27

Agenda Item 8

mailto:craig.spence@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 

Decision Information 

  

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No  

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities? 

Housing that meets the needs of all residents  

Which wards are impacted? All  

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, staffing, 

community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 The financial considerations arising from the compliance requirements have 

been substantially incorporated in the HRA budgets for 2022/23.  However, the 

HRA financial outlook remains challenging against a backdrop of rising demands, 

material price increases and managing customer expectations.  The re-setting of 

the respective responsibilities between landlord and tenant will become a key 

part of the review to enable a sustainable financial outlook to be developed.       

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 The updates to Committee allow members to track progress against key risk 

areas, which is to be welcomed from a governance perspective. The legal 

implications for non-compliance are incorporated within the risk ratings. 

 

Risk and Mitigation 

 

1.3 The necessary risk issues, logs, and mitigations will be identified through the 

necessary work plans, and any work outputs agreed with the Regulator. Clearly 

dealing with significant compliance matters requires a comprehensive approach 

to risk management, particularly in respect of assessing priorities and critical 

actions. The necessary and agreed risk assessment process with be discussed 

and agreed with the Regulator at the appropriate time to ensure outcomes are as 

far as possible managed and objectives achieved.  

28



 

Health and Safety 

 

1.4 The key focus in meeting the regulatory standard is to ensure tenants, 

leaseholders, their households and visitors live in homes that are, as far as is 

reasonably practicable, safe with hazards minimised.   This is reflected in the key 

compliance areas that are monitored and reported to Committee. 

 

Diversity and Inclusion 

 

1.5 All the necessary safeguarding and equality issues will be identified and 

complied with as the necessary compliance and improvement activities take 

place. Each equality and safeguarding impact are carefully considered when 

actioning a compliance or regulatory change. This is especially so when 

managing such matters for vulnerable households and particularly those 

occupying specialist accommodation such as designated sheltered 

accommodation.  

 

Climate Change 

 

1.6 Any capital improvement plans especially in the context of dealing with essential 

gas, electrical and other works will aim to maximise energy efficiency measures, 

and reductions in carbon emissions.  

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1 The Committee will be aware the Chief Executive determined, in consultation 

with the Leader and Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning, to self-refer the 

Council to the Regulator of Social Housing. Since this referral Officers have been 

providing further data and details relating to the core issues of non-compliance 

for the Regulator to consider and review.   

2.2 Monthly meetings have been taking place with the Regulator to cover issues of 

focus in terms of the regulatory framework, focussing on the Homes Standard.  

Any issues of importance raised will be verbally reported to this meeting.  The 

discussions and requests for information have been provided as required, and 

this has allowed the Regulator to continue to work with Officers in a constructive 

and helpful way.   

2.3 The Committee has now received eight update reports since March 2021 that 

have confirmed the Regulatory Notice served on the Council and provided an 

outline of the work that officers would continue to ensure we logically and 

methodically progress through a programme of improvement. 

2.4 The Committee determined that it would wish to receive update reports on 

progress at each of its meeting to ensure that Members had oversite of broad 

progress around the key areas of activity and could engage with Officers and 

29



scrutinise work where required. It identified the following core headings as a 

means of updating Members and would identify the following information to 

assist this process.  In addition, at the meeting on 01 July 2021, Committee 

requested sight of the Improvement Plan; the latest version is appended to this 

report. 

 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 Updating Tenants and Members: Following on from previous briefings, further 

All Member Briefings will be arranged to ensure Members are fully informed on 

progress and continued challenges.  

3.2 As reported to the Committee’s meeting in June 2022, a full tenant consultation 

exercise has been undertaken – “The Big Listen”.  This involved several 

questions on both the current experience of tenants in terms of the services the 

Council offers as a landlord, and what they would like to see prioritised in the 

Housing Revenue Account Business Plan, which will require a complete review 

in 2022/23.  The questions were based on the Regulator of Social Housing’s 

proposed Tenant Satisfaction Measures and the initial report was provided to 

Committee in the meeting on 23 June 2022. 

3.3 Section 4 of the AMS gives further detail of the key challenges in the context of 

the Council’s asset base and operating environment, and places emphasis on 

the ongoing responsibility of the Council to ensure compliance with applicable 

health and safety responsibilities.  It commits to an ongoing programme of 

regular costed building condition surveys to inform a proactive, planned 

maintenance programme and reduce the need for more expensive reactive 

repairs.   

3.4 A key activity to support the HRA Business Plan review is up-to-date information 

on the Council’s housing stock.   As noted in previous reports, the last full Stock 

Condition Survey was completed in 2009; good practice suggests 

comprehensive Stock Condition survey should be completed every 5 years, 

usually by undertaking a survey of 20% of the stock each year.  The Survey has 

now concluded, and analysis of the findings continues, with Member Workshops 

due to be scheduled through the Autumn and reports to relevant Scrutiny 

Committees to inform and influence the HRA Business Plan.      

3.5 The Council continues to utilise its Rant and Rave feedback, seeking real time 

feedback from tenants following responsive repairs.  We continue to see overall 

satisfaction of 4.5 out of 5, demonstrating sustained high satisfaction at the point 

where repairs are undertaken.   

3.6 Regular Meetings with the Regulator: Monthly meetings between the Chief 

Executive, Director of Housing and Property Services, and the Regulator’s 

Officers take place as scheduled; the next meeting at time of writing is due on 

the 13 September 2022. Progress has been significant right across the landlord 

health and safety compliance function (latest monthly figures attached as 

Appendix One to this report) and the relationship with the Regulator is positive, 

30



with the Regulator acknowledging that the Council is moving to a position to seek 

removal of the Notice that was formally served in February 2021.  

3.7 That removal is contingent on three issues: 

(a) Sustained maintenance of performance in relation to the key landlord 

health and safety areas (i.e. those shown on Appendix One) 

(b) Clear programmes of work related to the actions that arise from those 

areas (these are provided to the Regulator on a monthly basis) 

(c) A satisfactory external audit of the above, providing external assurance.  

Scoping work in relation to this external audit is underway, with actions 

to address potential gaps identified and clear responsibilities and 

timescales for those actions delegated.   

3.8 Committee may find additional comment on Appendix One helpful: 

3.8.1 Legionella – 100% compliant, showing evidencing consistent and proactive 

management of this compliance element.  

3.8.2 Gas – 99.63% achieved in July, again slightly down from the excellent result of 

100% of properties with an up-to-date gas certificate in April.   Of the properties 

without, all have appropriate actions up-to-date, including obtaining warrants to 

be served to force access.  A verbal update will be provided to Members with the 

outcome of those Court Hearings.  

3.8.3 Electrical testing – this shows the position in relation to properties (both dwellings 

and communal areas) with an up-to-date electrical certificate, with the current 

position being 86.29% of dwellings with a current satisfactory certificate.  

Committee will note that compliance has dropped slightly due to the continued 

testing that is underway; this is due to properties with a current certificate being 

retested, and remedial actions being identified.   Any urgent remedial works are 

being undertaken as part of the testing and the Housing Management Team are 

supporting with legal action where access has been refused. 

3.8.4 Asbestos – this shows 100% compliance in terms of asbestos inspections.  

3.8.5 Fire Risk Assessments – this shows all communal blocks assessed as “higher 

risk” have been inspected, and corrective actions are being programmed and 

completed.  It is consistent with the Council’s Fire Safety Management Plan.  

3.8.6 Lift inspections – all properties are currently compliant.  

3.9 Leadership Compliance Meetings: Chaired by Cabinet Member for Housing 

and Planning and attended by the Leader of the Council, the Chief Executive, the 

Director of Housing and Property, and the Assistant Director of Housing, these 

meetings have been a continued feature of the more detailed compliance review 

process being undertaken.  Members of this group ensure specific responses to 

the changing compliance review process and manage tenant and the 

communication responses to actions associated with key service and regulatory 

responses such as agreeing the scope and nature of key issues to be covered by 

the next SKyline magazine publication, due in December 2022.  

31



3.10 Regular Reports to Committees and Cabinet:  the necessary reporting to 

appropriate committees will continue.  Members are invited to comment on this 

report content and confirm their views and observations relating to the detail 

contained within this report.  

 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 These will be further determined through work with the Regulator, the adjusted 

Improvement Plan, and consideration of key outputs by Members, Leadership 

Compliance meetings, and All Member briefing sessions as arranged.  

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 To secure as determined by the Regulator a return to full compliance in respect 

of housing services, including the identification of appropriate resources, funds, 

and service improvements in a timely manner.  

 

6. Consultation 
 

6.1 The necessary consultation with the tenants and Members of the Council has 

been undertaken through timely reporting, dispatch of letters to advise tenants of 

progress, the latest Skyline publication, dedicated customer telephone enquiry 

line, and an updated web site detailing compliance issues and signposting 

services. This process will continue as required and the engagement with 

tenants particularly will be amended to reflect changing needs and requirements.  

 

7. Appendices 
 

7.1 Appendix 1 – Summary Paper relating to core compliance areas as at August 

2022. 

Appendix 2 – Improvement Plan August 2022. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

32



South Kesteven District Council - High Level Compliance Information Summary for the Regulator of Social Housing 

Baseline 

number
Compliant

Non 

Compliant

% 

Compliant

Baseline 

number
Compliant

Non 

Compliant

% 

Compliant

Baseline 

number
Compliant

Non 

Compliant

% 

Compliant

Baseline 

number
Compliant

Non 

Compliant

% 

Compliant

Baseline 

number
Compliant

Non 

Compliant

% 

Compliant
Comments 

Legionella 46 28 18 60.87% 46 38 8 82.61% 33 31 2 93.94% 33 33 0 100.00% 33 33 0 100.00%
Water risk assessments completed.

Gas 4645 4622 23 99.50% 4645 4645 0 100.00% 4644 4642 2 99.96% 4644 4633 11 99.76% 4644 4627 17 99.63%

17 properties. 1 property tenanted but unoccupied; 

booked for 3/8.  16 booked for Court on the 15th 

August 2022 . 

Electrical 6216 5113 1103 82.26% 6216 5203 1013 83.70% 6087 5270 817 86.58% 6087 5300 787 87.07% 6083 5249 834 86.29%

Adjustment of baseline figure to remove RTBs.We 

are waiting for an additional 11 certs which are 

being checked. These are shown as not compliant 

until the paperwork is received.Through our data 

validation exercise we have identified valid EICR's 

which have been superceded by the contractors 

rolling programme identifying remedial works.

Asbestos (re-inspections) 260 98 162 37.69% 259 180 79 69.50% 204 204 0 100.00% 204 204 0 100.00% 213 213 0 100.00%

Baseline increased to 213 from 204. Additional 

inspections ideintifed as part of the ongoing 

Absestos consultant work and linked to no 

access.All additional inspections complete 

03/08/22

Fire Risk Assessments 148 145 4 97.97% 148 148 0 100.00% 148 148 0 100.00% 148 148 0 100.00% 148 148 0 100.00%

Lift inspections 13 12 1 92.31% 13 13 0 100.00% 13 13 0 100% 13 13 0 100% 13 13 0 100%

Compliance Activity Red Amber Green

Legionella <95%
95.01-

99.99%
100%

Gas <99.8%
99.81-

99.99%
100%

Electrical <98%
98.01-

99.99%
100%

Asbestos <85%
85.01-

99.99%
100%

FRA Actions <97%
97.01%-

99.99%
100%

V17 - 05/08/22

31/07/202230/06/202231/05/202229/04/202231/03/2022

33

A
ppendix O

ne



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Housing Improvement Action Plan v8 Aug 2022

Action 

number 

Issue Detail How 

identified 

Action to address Target Budget Lead 

Officer 

RAG Direction 

of travel 

May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22

HIAP1 Current IHMS inadequate Northgate implementation paused Summer 

2021 to review, plan, costs, scope, and 

await senior management recruitment and 

re assess resource needs to manage a 

future implementation.   Report to CMT 

24.11.21 to agree project implementation 

and procurement method 

Self 

assessment 

Nov 20 and 

ongoing 

Procurement and project 

implementation

Framework 

procurement 

December 2021, 

evaluation January 

2021, with system go-

live April 2023.  

Budget 

approved in HRA 

for 21/22 and 

future years 

projections.

ADH
+

Contracts signed.

Project kick off meeting 

completed, external data 

consultant in place to aid 

with data extract.

Project team across the 

directorate and key internal 

stakeholders drawn up 

consisting of 12 members.

Project ongoing, existing 

database copied to enable 

data extract template creation 

and validation.

Project team focusing on 

process and procedures to 

ensure a fit with new system.

Robust project plan drawn up.

No change, remains on target. Continued strong progress with 

this significance IT project.  

Monthly internal project team 

meetings allow progress to be 

monitored, both budget and 

timeline are "green" status with 

the implementation date of 

April 2023 remaining a 

challenging but achievable goal.

HIAP2 Allocations based on offers, not 

CBL

Consultation on CBL carried out during the 

first 3 weeks of September – surveys sent 

out & workshops undertaken.  Discussion 

paper to Communities Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee meeting early 2022. 

Members briefing discussion in January.  

Self 

assessment 

Nov 20 and 

ongoing 

Complete Choice Based Lettings 

and Allocation review process and 

achieve introduction of revised 

policy and CBL solution including 

training.   

April 2022 Policy; 

Launch October 2022

Costs TBC ADH
=

No change Allocation policy at Cabinet 12 

July to consider approval (link - 

http://moderngovsvr/ieListDoc

uments.aspx?CId=164&MId=42

70&Ver=4).

Approved.  Implementation 

plan now under development.

Approved.  Implementation plan 

now under development.

HIAP3 Lack of performance 

management framework 

allowing real-time, automated 

information

Complete review of core housing KPI and 

customer standards for Housing service. 

This to include key issues such as void 

times, jobs out of time, compliance etc.  

Self 

assessment 

Nov 20 and 

ongoing 

Service blueprints provide key Pis, 

agreed by management team.  

Strong link to IHMS project  

April 2023 full roll-out Existing 

resources 

DHP
=

No further actions 

completed.

Complete.

HIAP4 Grounds maintenance contract 

review.

Uncertainty around VFM and contract 

management anecdotally poor 

Self 

assessment 

Nov 20 and 

ongoing 

Clear roles for contract 

management as part of Estate 

Management function

Budget agreed 

and included in 

21/22 budget 

significant uplift 

approved for 

better spec.

HofHS 
=

Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing - procurement 

underway. 

Ongoing as part of the broader 

corporate project. 

HIAP5 Lack of strategy and policy 

framework 

Complete review of key documents and 

identify work plan and timelines. Revised 

Tenant engagement Strategy planned.

Self 

assessment 

Nov 20 and 

ongoing 

Complete review of key 

documents and identify work plan 

and timelines based on risk.  Aids 

and Adaptations Policy, Right to 

Buy Policy, Compensation Policy 

and Rechargeable Repairs Policy 

in first tranche.

Complete first tranche 

July 2022

Existing 

resources 

ADH
+

No change delivery of plan 

ongoing.

No change delivery of plan 

ongoing.

No change delivery of plan 

ongoing.

No change delivery of plan 

ongoing.

HIAP6 Review Asset Management Plan 

and HRA Business Plan.  

This is a document that can only be drafted 

once the outcome of the stock condition 

survey is determined.

Self 

assessment 

Nov 20 and 

ongoing 

Stock Condition Survey underway. 

Asset Management Strategy to be 

developed as survey data is 

analysed. The Target date for 

completion of this work is end of 

March 2022.

Jul-22 Existing 

resources 

DHP 

(support

ed AD 

Finance)

=
Big Listen report signed off, 

work commencing to draft 

AMS. Staff consulted on 

priorities at recent all staff 

briefing sessions.

Focused meetings taking place 

to scope plans and formulate 

drafts.

Initial assumptions shared, 

further work on compiling 

stock information in progress.

Implications of the rent setting 

standard being considered, with 

a cap on the rent increase in 

April 2023 considered likely.  

Continued work on analysing 

the stock condition, especially in 

the context of retrofit, 

continues.

HIAP7 The Council does not have an 

Empty Homes Strategy 

Self 

assessment 

Nov 20 and 

ongoing 

Draft complete Apr-22 Existing 

resources 

DHP  
+

Complete. Complete. Complete. Complete.

Progress update 

35

A
ppendix T

w
o



Action 

number 

Issue Detail How 

identified 

Action to address Target Budget Lead 

Officer 

RAG Direction 

of travel 

May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22

HIAP8 Engagement with Tenants to 

inform and seek views on service 

standards

Lack of real time feedback Self 

assessment 

Nov 20 and 

ongoing 

Rant and Rave procured. Apr-22 Budget 

approved  

HoTS
+

219 completed interactions 

so far;

Satisfaction score remains 

stable at 4.3/5

Sentiment score is 3.8/5.

Rant and Rave latest as of 

1/7/22;

Satisfaction score = 4.6/5

Sentiment score = 4/5

Both aspects improving, results 

shared with teams at recent all 

service briefings.

Continues to reinforce that 

customers are satisfied once 

they receive their property or 

repair, main negativity 

surrounds wait times and 

communication which both 

form a big part of the 

improvements planned with 

our system changes.

Rant and Rave continues to 

show satisfaction of 4.2/5, 

engagement within our 

sheltered schemes continue.

Rant and Rave continues to 

show satisfaction of 4.5/5.  

Workshops and events are being 

held in the Council's Sheltered 

Schemes.  

36



Homes Standard v8 Aug 2022

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/914576/Home_Standard_2015.pdf

Regulatory 

Reference 

Summary Action 

number 

Issue Detail How identified Action to address Target Budget Lead 

Officer 

RAG Direction 

of travel 

May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22

HS2 Lack of stock condition 

information 

Last full Stock Condition Survey 

completed 2009. Sample Stock 

Condition surveys by internal 

surveyors been undertaken 

annually, but not consistent 

around detail and numbers.

Self Assessment 

Nov 20

Commission full 

stock condition 

survey in 2021/22.

Mar-22 £780k Budget 

approved by 

Full Council in 

December 

2020.

HofTS
+

Currently 

interrogating data to 

inform HRA Business 

Plan.

Complete and annual 

surveys to continue.

HS3 Revised capital improvements 

programme for 21/22 and future 

financial years. This to include 

potential new priorities such as 

fencing programme, 

windows/door entry systems, 

FRA’s and electrical certificates.

Heavily dependent on Action 2 Self Assessment 

Nov 20

Revised capital 

programmes based 

on previous years 

and emerging 

issues.  

Jul-22 Budget 

setting 

2022/23

ADH
=

No change. No change. No change. This action forms part of the 

work on the HRA Business 

Plan (HIAP6).

HIAP6 Review Asset Management Plan 

and HRA Business Plan.  

This is a document that can only 

be drafted once the outcome of 

the stock condition survey is 

determined.

Self assessment 

Nov 20 and 

ongoing 

Stock Condition 

Survey underway. 

Asset Management 

Strategy to be 

developed as 

survey data is 

analysed. The 

Target date for 

completion of this 

work is end of 

March 2022

Jul-22 Existing 

resources 

DHP 

(supported 

AD 

Finance)

=
Big Listen report now 

received, additional 

report shared on 

Regulator questions.

Commencing compilation 

of information to inform 

future drafts.

Initial assumptions 

shared, further 

work on compiling 

stock information 

in progress.

Initial assumptions shared, 

further work on compiling 

stock information in progress

1.1c in agreeing a local offer, ensure that it is set at a level 

not less than these standards

HS4 No local offer Not a requirement; low priority 

pending relaunch of tenant 

engagement function and result 

of "Big Listen" survey

Self Assessment 

Dec 21 =
No change. No change. No change. No change. 

1.2a provide a cost-effective repairs and maintenance 

service to homes and communal areas that responds 

to the needs of, and offers choices to, tenants, and 

has the objective of completing repairs and 

improvements right first time

HS5 Anecdotal evidence of poor 

service, lack of pre and post 

inspection, lack of benchmarking, 

limited stock condition 

information.  

Service blueprint and restructure 

to clarify roles and resources, 

strong link to IHMS procurement 

and process reviews; confusing 

number of contractual terms for 

trades team  

Self assessment 

Nov 20 and 

ongoing 

Restructure; 

identify and 

improve processes 

on a risk basis; 

IHMS 

procurement; 

training and 

performance 

management. 

Jul-22 DHP
+

Restructure almost 

finalised, trades 

collective bargaining 

ongoing with postal 

vote currently 

underway.

Trades collective 

bargaining complete with 

agreement to proceed 

with single consistent job 

description across all 

operatives.

Restructure awaiting final 

sign off.

No change. No change. 

Progress update 

37



Regulatory 

Reference 

Summary Action 

number 

Issue Detail How identified Action to address Target Budget Lead 

Officer 

RAG Direction 

of travel 

May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22

1.2b meet all applicable statutory requirements that 

provide for the health and safety of the occupants in 

their homes.

HS6 No effective IT solution for 

monitoring and managing 

compliance requirements 

Fire, gas and electrical priority Self Assessment 

Nov 20

Propeller System 

procured and 

launched 2021.  

Apr-22 Budget 

approved. 

Costs £76k 

20/21 

financial year 

then £39k per 

year.

HofTS
=

Work ongoing Work ongoing, revisiting 

master/slave data sources 

to ensure one version of 

the truth.

Work ongoing. Continued background work, 

linked to the build of the new 

IHMS system.  This action will 

form part of the 

improvements to the Council's 

Asset Management System 

(APEX) planned for 2023/24, 

that will ensure consistency of 

system hierarchy across both 

Housing Management and 

Asset Management Systems.

HS7 Sheltered housing compliance 

and operational review required.

Separate Action Plan Self assessment 

June 21

Apr-22
+

Separate Action Plan. Separate Action Plan. Separate Action 

Plan.

Continued improvements, 

with training delivered to all 

front line staff on person 

centred risk assessments and 

personal evacuation plans for 

tenants.  

HS8 Wide issues of non-compliance 

identified by Internal Audit report 

Delivery of key Audit 

recommendations 

Audit report 

November 2020 

and October 

2021

Close monitoring 

of KPIs; reporting 

to Scrutiny 

Committees 

Apr-22 Existing 

resources 

DHP
=

Remaining key action 

is adoption of a 

Repairs Policy.  On 

track for Cabinet 

September 2023. 

No change. No change No change 

2.1.1 shall ensure their tenants are aware of the reasons 

for any period of non-compliance, their plan to 

achieve compliance and then report on progress 

delivering this plan.

HS9 Provide information and 

reassurance for tenants regarding 

regulatory notice and 

improvements 

Information and updates 

provided on service of notice 

Self Assessment 

Nov 20

Ongoing Ongoing Existing 

resources 

DHP
=

Summer edition 

finalised, final draft 

attached 

Summer edition sent to all 

tenants

No change No change 

2.2.1 ensure a prudent, planned approach to repairs and 

maintenance of homes and communal areas. This 

should demonstrate an appropriate balance of 

planned and responsive repairs, and value for money. 

The approach should include: responsive and cyclical 

repairs, planned and capital work, work on empty 

properties, and adaptations.

HS10 Anecdotal evidence of poor 

service, lack of pre and post 

inspection, lack of benchmarking, 

limited stock condition 

information.  

Service blueprint and restructure 

to clarify roles and resources, 

strong link to IHMS procurement 

and process reviews 

Self assessment 

Nov 20 and 

ongoing 

Restructure; 

identify and 

improve processes 

on a risk basis; 

IHMS 

procurement; 

training and 

performance 

management 

Jul-22 Existing 

resources 

DHP 
+

As above union 

decided to conduct 

postal vote so result 

shall be delayed until 

mid June.

Collective bargaining 

result positive with a 

majority vote passed to 

adopt single trades 

contract.

Implementation timeline 

of contract terms 30 days 

from formal sign off.

Restructure of teams to 

provide an enhanced 

overview of trades output 

along with an area based 

team structure to promote 

healthy competition.

Awaiting contract 

sign off by Trade 

Union. 

Contract now signed off by all 

parties and new terms and 

conditions introduced.  

2.2.2 co-operate with relevant organisations to provide an 

adaptations service that meets tenants’ needs.

HS11 Engagement with OT service 

haphazard, general approach is to 

complete adaptations regardless 

of practicality 

No clear policy on Aids and 

Adaptations 

Self assessment 

December 2021

Adopt Aids and 

Adaptation Policy 

Apr-22 Existing 

resources

HofHS
+

Policy going to 

Cabinet in July 2022.

No change, paper written 

awaiting Cabinet date in 

October.

No change. Pending a formal report, 

Officers have engaged with 

LCC Occupational Therapist 

services (adults and children) 

and adopted sector good 

practice predicated on the 

Council making best use of its 

housing stock.

2.2.3 Asbestos Action Plan. HS12 Coordinated action plan to 

mitigate  current asbestos risks, 

ensure constant data 

management moving forward.

Action plan Self assessment 

May 22

Action identified 

on plan

Dec-22 Existing 

resources

HofTS
+

Version 1 of action 

plan agreed and 

shared with 

Regulator, working 

progress.

New team members have 

pulled together a cross 

directorate Asbestos 

Working Group to ensure 

an enhanced consistency 

of approach.

Asbestos Action 

Plan implemented. 

Asbestos Action Plan adopted 

and rolled out, demonstrated 

by sustained 100% 

performance.   Now "business 

as usual" and can be closed.

38



 
 

       

Rural and 
Communities 
Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 
 

15 September 2022 
 
Report Councillor Annie Mason, 
Cabinet Member for People and Safer 
Communities 

 

 

Cost of Living Strategy 
 

Report Author 

Claire Moses – Head of Revenues, Benefits and Customer Service 

  01476 406484 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

This report sets out the steps that South Kesteven District Council and partners in the 

public, voluntary and community sector can take to provide support and advice to those 

who are being most impacted by the cost of living.  

 

 

Recommendations 

That the Committee: 

1. Notes the support that has been provided so far to residents and 
businesses, as detailed in Appendix 1; 

2. Supports the establishment of a Strategic Working Group and External 
Stakeholder Group; 

3. Notes the actions to be taken as detailed in Appendix 2. 

 

 

 

39

Agenda Item 9

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No 

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities? 

Healthy and strong communities 

 

Which wards are impacted? All 

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 The report sets out the specific schemes that are being implemented to support 

residents with the cost of living – both statutory and national initiatives. 

1.2 The majority of the schemes identified in the report are not directly funded by the 

Council.  For some schemes, new burdens funding is provided for the 

administration of these schemes. 

1.3 Those funded by the Council are the Council Tax Support Scheme and 

Discretionary Council Tax Payments. 

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.4 There are no specific legal implications connected with this report, however all 

financial support schemes acceptance must follow the agreed process and 

governance. 

 

Risk and Mitigation 

 

1.5 The necessary risk issues, logs and mitigations will be identified through the work 

plans. 

 

 

Diversity and Inclusion 

 

1.6 Diversity and inclusion considerations will be identified and complied with as each 

project/funding stream is accessed. 

 

 

40



Safeguarding 

 

1.7 All the necessary safeguarding requirements will be identified and complied with 

as each project/funding stream is accessed. 

 

Human Resources 

 

1.8 There could be impact on resource requirements and this will be picked up as part 

of the actions for the Cost of Living Strategic Working Group. 

 

Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing 

 

1.9 The increasing cost of living is having a big impact on mental health and emotional 

wellbeing, and support in this area will therefore form a big part of the cost of living 

strategy. There will be links to the Mental Health Working Group and these will be 

picked up as part of the actions for the Cost of Living Strategic Working Group. 

 

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  The Committee will be aware that the cost of living has been increasing across the 

UK since early 2021 and as a result, households are struggling to make their 

incomes stretch to cover those increases. 

2.2 The Government has previously announced over £15 billion in further support, 

which is targeted particularly at those in the greatest need. 

2.3 The Cabinet Office has recently launched a ‘Help for Households’ campaign which 

explains the 41 different Government schemes available to help with the cost of 

living, including new one-off payments as well as existing benefit schemes. 

2.4 These schemes have been brought together onto one Cost of Living Support 

website – which can be found here: Help for Households - Get government cost of 

living support 

 

 

Measures of Support provided during 2022/23 

 

2.5 Measures of support for households are in place, and these range from statutory 

support to those announced by Government and the then Chancellor in February, 

March and May 2022 

2.6 The support available during 2022/23 is detailed in Appendix 1 and is broken 

down into Statutory Support and National Initiatives.   

2.7 In real terms, the value of support administered by SKDC so far for 2022/23 is 

• Statutory Support - £23,131,747 

• National Initiatives - £12,050,372 

 

 

 

41

https://helpforhouseholds.campaign.gov.uk/
https://helpforhouseholds.campaign.gov.uk/


Cost of living help and support web page 

 

2.8 The Council has developed a Cost of Living Help and Support web page: Cost of 

Living help and support (southkesteven.gov.uk) 

2.9 The web page has been developed to ensure residents and businesses have 

access to all information they need, and to share facts and pointers on a wide 

range of help and support available. 

2.10 Early feedback has been received from third party sectors which has been 

positive. 

 

 

Actions to be taken by South Kesteven District Council 

 

2.11 Our immediate and future response needs to be focused and have clear steps that 

can be taken to further support businesses and residents in our District. 

2.12 It is proposed we establish a cross-partner approach to the cost-of-living crisis 

which will include an internal Strategic Working Group and an External 

Stakeholder Group for collaborative working.   

2.13 The Strategic Working Group would provide strategic direction for this work and 

the group should be led and chaired by the Cabinet Member of People and Safe 

Communities and be supported by key officers. 

2.14 The External Stakeholder Group will have representatives from other public, 

private, and voluntary sector organisations, with responsibility to co-ordinate 

activities in response to the actions directed by the Strategic Working Group.  This 

group will also report emerging concerns which can be fed back to the Strategic 

Working Group so appropriate actions can be considered.  

2.15 Initial contact has been made with a number of potential representatives of the 

External Stakeholder Group and the feedback has been positive, with 

representatives stating the action is positive and proactive. 

2.16 There are a number of actions which have recently been achieved in readiness of 

bringing the report to this Committee – these are detailed in Appendix 2.   

2.17 A detailed action plan and strategy will be devised and managed by the Strategic 

Working Group. 

 

 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 This is the first report and as such, feedback from this committee will be used for 

future development of the strategy. 

 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 Do nothing. 

4.2 Undertake actions detailed Appendix 2. 

 

 

42

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=15901
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=15901


 

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 Accessing the funding, support and delivering these schemes enables us to 

support some of our most vulnerable tenants and residents across the district 

whilst supporting delivery of two of our corporate priorities. 

 

 

6. Consultation 
 

6.1 This is the first report and as such, feedback from this committee will be used for 

future development of the strategy. 

6.2 Updates will be provided at future committee meetings and included on forward 

plans.  

 

7. Background Papers 
 

7.1 None 

 

 

8. Appendices 
 

8.1 Appendix 1 – Support available during 2022/23 

8.2 Appendix 2 – Proposed action plan  

 

  

 

 

 

43



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 – 15 September 2022 – Error! Unknown document property name. 
 
 

Support provided to residents so far for 2022/3 

South Kesteven District Council continues to support residents throughout 2022/23 by administering the Governments statutory 

support schemes, along with national initiatives.   

 

The value of support administered by SKDC so far for 2022/23 is 

• Statutory Support - £23,131,747 

• National Initiatives - £12,050,372 

 

 

Type of support 

 

Type of support 

Position as at 23 August 2022 

Value of 

support 

Current Position 

Statutory Housing Benefit 

 
Housing Benefit: Eligibility - GOV.UK 

(www.gov.uk) 

Housing Benefits and Council Tax 

Support (southkesteven.gov.uk) 

£15,843,737 • Support available throughout 2022/23 

• Rent rebate (SKDC tenants) - £7,670,266 

• Rent Allowance (Private tenants) - £8,173,471 

Statutory Council Tax Support 

 
Housing Benefits and Council Tax 

Support (southkesteven.gov.uk) 

£7,163,124 • Support available throughout 2022/23 

• Working age – 4,345 recipients (£3,986,799) 

• Pension age – 3,152 recipients (£3,176,325) 

Statutory Discretionary Housing Payment 

(Budget for 2022/23 is £155,861) 

 
Extra support - discretionary housing 

payments (southkesteven.gov.uk) 

£77,811 • Support available throughout 2022/23 

• Help people with Housing costs as a result of a shortfall 

due to the benefit cap, removal of spare room subsidy in 

the social rented sector, Local Housing Allowance 

45

A
ppendix O

ne

https://www.gov.uk/housing-benefit
https://www.gov.uk/housing-benefit
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8129
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8129
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8129
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8129
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8130
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8130


Appendix 1 – 15 September 2022 – Error! Unknown document property name. 
 
 

 

Type of support 

 

Type of support 

Position as at 23 August 2022 

Value of 

support 

Current Position 

• Cover Housing costs for rent deposits and/or rent in 

advance 

• Income and expenditure assessment is undertaken 

Statutory Discretionary Council Tax 

Payment 

(Budget for 2022/23 is £38,861) 

 
Extra support - discretionary housing 

payments (southkesteven.gov.uk) 

£17,075 • Support available throughout 2022/23 

• Help people with a shortfall between Council Tax Support 

award and Council Tax liability 

• Income and expenditure assessment is undertaken 

National Initiative 

– 

Administered by 

SKDC Revenues 

and Benefits 

Team 

Business Rates – Retail Relief 

50% 

 

Business rates relief 

(southkesteven.gov.uk) 

 

£3,814,222 • Support available throughout 2022/23 

• At the budget on 27 October 2021, the Chancellor 

announced that eligible ratepayers will receive 50% relief 

on their business rates bills for the year 2022/23 up to a 

maximum cash cap of £110,000 

• Relief will be provided to eligible occupied retail, 

hospitality and leisure properties 

• The 50% has been automatically awarded for those in 

receipt of the same relief in 2021/22 (66%).   

• Letters were issued to all those businesses requesting 

them to complete an online application to either opt-in or 

opt-out of the relief 

46

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8130
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8130
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8294
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8294


Appendix 1 – 15 September 2022 – Error! Unknown document property name. 
 
 

 

Type of support 

 

Type of support 

Position as at 23 August 2022 

Value of 

support 

Current Position 

• All returned applications where the business has chosen 

to opt-out have been processed, with an updated bill 

being issued with new instalments from 1 May 2022 

National Initiative 

– 

Administered by 

SKDC Revenues 

and Benefits 

Team 

 

£150 Council Tax Rebate – Main 

scheme (Band A-D) 

 
Council Tax Energy Rebate 

(southkesteven.gov.uk) 
 

£7,973,250 • The Governments deadline for making payments is 30 

September 2022 

• Out of 53,431 properties that are eligible (Bands A-D) – 

payments have been made to 99.48% of households 

National Initiative 

– 

Administered by 

SKDC Revenues 

and Benefits 

Team 

£150 Council Tax Rebate – 

Discretionary scheme (Band E-H) 

 

Council Tax Energy Rebate 

(southkesteven.gov.uk) 

 • The Government’s deadline for making payments is 30 

November 2022 

• The total funding for the scheme is capped at £189,900 

• Scheme eligibility is currently being analysed 

• Due to start awarding from October 2022 

National Initiative Cost of living payments for 

households receiving means-

tested benefits.  

Cost of Living Payment - GOV.UK 

(www.gov.uk)  

£650 • Paid in two instalments – July and Autumn 

• Nationally for over 8 million households on means tested 

 

47

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=15695
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=15695
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=15695
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=15695
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/cost-of-living-payment
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/cost-of-living-payment


Appendix 1 – 15 September 2022 – Error! Unknown document property name. 
 
 

 

Type of support 

 

Type of support 

Position as at 23 August 2022 

Value of 

support 

Current Position 

National Initiative 

– 

Administered by 

SKDC Revenues 

and            

Benefits Team 

Household Support Fund – April to 

September 2022 

Household Support Fund (1 April 2022 to 

30 September 2022): final guidance for 

county councils and unitary authorities in 

England - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 

 

£262,900 • Funding for Lincolnshire has been announced - 

£5,464,685 

• The distribution of funding between Lincolnshire County 

Council (LCC) and South Kesteven District Council is 

currently unknown 

• The fund helps vulnerable households meet daily needs 

such as food, clothing and utilities 

• At least 33% must be spent on families with children – via 

Lincolnshire County Council free school meal 

distribution; 

• At least 33% must be spent on pensioners via post office 

vouchers for the value of £110 per pensioner (2,390);  

• Remaining funding for other households via supermarket 

vouchers at a value of £100 for adult only household or 

£200 for household with children 

National Initiative Energy bill reduction for all 

households – known as the 

Energy Bills Support Scheme 

(EBSS) 

Energy Bills Support Scheme explainer - 

GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 

£400 • Grant for all households which will be taken off their 

energy bills in Autumn 2022 

• Households will not have to make repayments 

National Initiative Cost of living payment – Additional 

payment for pensioners 

£300 • Payment to over 8 million pensioners who receive the 

Winter Fuel Payment 

48

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/household-support-fund-guidance-for-local-councils/household-support-fund-final-guidance-for-county-councils-and-unitary-authorities-in-england
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/household-support-fund-guidance-for-local-councils/household-support-fund-final-guidance-for-county-councils-and-unitary-authorities-in-england
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/household-support-fund-guidance-for-local-councils/household-support-fund-final-guidance-for-county-councils-and-unitary-authorities-in-england
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/household-support-fund-guidance-for-local-councils/household-support-fund-final-guidance-for-county-councils-and-unitary-authorities-in-england
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/energy-bills-support-scheme-explainer
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/energy-bills-support-scheme-explainer


Appendix 1 – 15 September 2022 – Error! Unknown document property name. 
 
 

 

Type of support 

 

Type of support 

Position as at 23 August 2022 

Value of 

support 

Current Position 

Cost of Living Payment - GOV.UK 

(www.gov.uk) 

National Initiative Cost of living payment – Additional 

payment for people receiving 

disability payments 

Help for Households - Get government 

cost of living support 

£150 • Payment to be made from 20 September 2022 

• Payment to around 6 million people receiving disability 

benefits 

National initiative  Household Support Fund – 

October 2022 to April 2023 

 

 

At the time of writing this report, these details are currently unknown but expect 

to receive an announcement in the coming weeks.  Lincolnshire County 

Council and Lincolnshire Districts Councils will continue their working group to 

discuss details. 

 

 

49

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/cost-of-living-payment
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/cost-of-living-payment
https://helpforhouseholds.campaign.gov.uk/
https://helpforhouseholds.campaign.gov.uk/


T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 – 15 September 2022 – Error! Unknown document property name. 
 
 

Immediate actions to be taken by South Kesteven District Council 

This action plan sets the immediate activities required in the coming weeks. 

 

Action How action will be achieved Responsible Target 

Date 

Cost of living information 

to be readily available for 

residents 

Develop the cost-of-living help and support web page on SKDC website 

 

Strategic 

Working Group 

members 

01.09.22 

Respond to feedback from stakeholders regarding the information 

provided and use of the website 

 

Strategic 

Working Group 

members 

05.09.22 

Internal and external communication of website 

 

Communications 

Team 

07.09.22 

Improve communication of statutory support – such as Housing Benefit, 

Council Tax Support, Discretionary Housing Payment and Discretionary 

Council Tax Payment  

Lead Working 

Group Officer 

07.09.22 

Ongoing review of the web page to ensure it is relevant and up to date 

 

 

Lead Working 

Group Officer 

and 

Communications 

Team 

Ongoing  

Ensure all SKDC Officers and Members have access to Government 

Toolkit and up to date information 

Lead Working 

Group Officer 

Ongoing 

51

A
ppendix T

w
o



Appendix 2 – 15 September 2022 – Error! Unknown document property name. 
 
 

Action How action will be achieved Responsible Target 

Date 

 Respond quickly to government announcements and implement actions 

as agreed and directed by the Strategic Working Group 

Strategic 

Working Group 

members 

Ongoing 

Establish an internal 

Strategic Working Group 

Initial meeting to be held, chaired by the Cabinet Member of People and 

Safe Communities 

Future meetings to take place weekly 

Cabinet Member 

of People and 

Safe 

Communities 

06.09.22 

The initial responsibilities of the group will be to: 

1. Develop and agree a full action plan to focus future activities - 

setting clear objectives and approach 

2. Completion of Risk Assessments for each service area potentially 

impacted – such as Revenues, Benefits, Housing etc 

3. Develop a Cost of Living and Wellbeing Support strategy to 

respond to the cost-of-living challenges faced by the districts 

residents and businesses. 

Strategic 

Working Group 

members 

To be 

confirmed 

as 

outcome of 

06.09.22 

meeting 

The ongoing responsibility of the group will be to monitor the overall 

strategy and direction, monitor the action plan and the activities of the 

external stakeholder group 

The group would establish an operational plan and a set of workstreams 

to deliver this plan 

Establish an external 

stakeholder group 

 

Key stakeholders to be identified and placeholder meeting to be issued 

for 4 October 2022.  This will be a partnership group with representatives 

from other public, private, and voluntary sector organisations 

Strategic 

Working Group 

members 

06.09.22 

52



Appendix 2 – 15 September 2022 – Error! Unknown document property name. 
 
 

Action How action will be achieved Responsible Target 

Date 

 

Initial meeting to be held, chair and frequency to be determined at the 

first meeting 

TBC October 

2022 

The responsibility of the group will be to: 

• To understand how the Council and stakeholders can further 

support residents and businesses; 

• Ensure help with debt and financial advice is understood by 

key SKDC Teams 

• To produce a clear sign posting process for all SKDC Officers 

and Members  

• Co-ordinate activities in response to the actions directed by 

the strategic working group 

• Report progress to the strategic working group 

• Report emerging concerns to the strategic working group 

 

External 

Stakeholder 

Group members 

 

To be 

confirmed 

as an 

outcome of 

October 

2022 

meetings 

Representatives of the group would need to have sufficient authority to 

speak on behalf of their organisation and commit them agreed actions 

 

53



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

       

Rural and Communities 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee  
 

15 September 2022 
 
Report of Councillor Robert Reid, 
Cabinet Member for Housing and 
Property 
 

 

 

 

Communication with Tenants across the Council 
 

Report Author 

Craig Spence, Assistant Director of Housing 

 craig.spence@southkesteven.gov.uk   

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

To update Committee on the activities undertaken to communicate with our tenants.   

The Charter for Social Housing Residents was published by the Ministry of Housing 

Communities and Local Government on 17 November 2020. We welcomed the paper 

and its focus on resident voice and influence, placing a greater emphasis on enhancing 

two-way communication with our tenants, to achieve greater accountability to residents. 

 

Recommendations 

 

That the Committee/Council: 

1. Notes the contents of this report and the progress made by the Housing 
and Property directorate to improve and embed the importance of 
communication to our tenants in line with the Social Housing White Paper. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

55

Agenda Item 10

mailto:craig.spence@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No 

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities? 

Housing that meets the needs of all residents 

 

Which wards are impacted? All 

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, staffing, 

community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 There are no specific financial implications arising from this report. 

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 There are no Legal or Governance implications as a direct result of this report 

 

Diversity and Inclusion 

 

1.3 All tenants and leaseholders have been consulted throughout this activity ensuring 

inclusivity of approach. 

 

Is an Equality Impact Assessment required?  

 

No 

 

Climate Change 

 

1.4 Key questions within the Big Listen Survey were asked in relation to energy 

efficiency upgrades to our tenant’s homes, to aid with our future investment 

strategies. 

 

 

 

 

 

56



2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  As a landlord and in line with our corporate priority to provide, ‘Housing that meets 

the needs of all residents’ enabling effective and valuable two-way communication 

with our tenants is key. 

2.2 The Social Housing White Paper of November 2020 places a greater emphasis on 

the landlord to ensure that the voice of the customer is heard and is integral to 

how we evolve our services to meet and exceed their expectations. 

2.3 The current team have undertaken several pieces of work to embed the 

importance of communicating with our tenants, implementing a ‘You Say – We Do’ 

approach with the key activities delivered summarised below 

 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 The Big Listen 2022 

3.1.1 In April of this year we launched our Big Listen survey to all tenants and 

leaseholders, we had a fantastic response rate of 29% which equates to 1,723 of 

the 5,960 invited to take part. Some of the headline results are summarised below 

with the Tenant Satisfaction Report 2022 appended as Appendix 1. We were the 

first social landlord to use the draft Regulator for Social Housings, Tenant 

Satisfaction Measures (TSM) question set. 

3.1.2 The overall satisfaction rating for residents of 72% is good but is 11% below that 

of the previous survey undertaken in 2011. 

3.1.3 Seven out of ten residents are satisfied with the quality of their home (68%), with a 

similar number happy that they are provided with a home that is well-maintained 

and safe (67%). 

3.1.4 Almost three-fifths of residents are satisfied with the way South Kesteven District 

Council deals with repairs and maintenance (58%). 

3.1.5 Two-thirds of residents find South Kesteven District Council easy to deal with 

(67%). 

 

3.2 Rant and Rave  

3.2.1 This innovative solution was launched in April of this year, providing us with the 

ability to monitor transactional satisfaction of our tenants via email or text (SMS). 

3.2.2  We have received results from 446 interactions via this system achieving a score 

of 4.5 out of 5. 

3.2.3  A screenshot of the results is attached as Appendix 2 – Rant and Rave 

screenshot. 

3.2.4  The value of this system shall continue to grow and is regularly reviewed by the 

departments management team to identify continuous improvement opportunities 

that can shape process and policy development. 

57



 

3.3 Supported Housing sessions 

3.3.1 As committee are aware we have extensive supported housing stock across the 

district. As a result of successful engagement sessions with residents at our 

Riverside complex earlier in the year we have made a commitment to run 

engagement events across our supported sites. 

3.3.2  So far this year we have run events at the below locations with a good turnout 

and positive interaction with our tenants. The sessions are held mainly in 

communal rooms with tea and coffee provided, we ensure attendance from the 

relevant Housing Officer, Supported Housing Officer, Tenant Engagement Officer 

and Councillors are invited to. We have also had the Police and our trades teams 

on hand to aid with any issues raised on the day that can be resolved. 

3.3.3  The sessions have been well received by all involved and enable us to raise 

awareness of the teams and the tenant’s main points of contact in relation to their 

tenancies. We have also included an overview of some of the sessions within our 

recent SKyline tenant’s magazine. 

3.3.4 The below table lists the events and attendance so far with more events planned 

throughout the year. 

 

Location Number of tenants in attendance 

Riverside several events Average of 15 

Manners Street 20 

Woods Close 15 

Almond Court 15 

Emlyn Gardens 15 

Hillary Close 16 

St Nicholas Close 15 

Stanton Close 20 

Manor Court 15 

Sandon Close 15 

 

3.4 SKyline 

3.4.1 Our main feedback mechanism to our tenants is our biannual tenant magazine 

‘SKyline’. This publication is produced with input across the council, ensuring that 

we share important messages around Health & Safety, Regulatory Compliance, 

Landlord Performance, News, Events and updates from our Cabinet Member and 

Director. 

3.4.2 SKyline is produced in a very professional manner with fantastic input from our 

communications team and Graphics Officer. The publication is professionally 

printed and mailed to all tenants; we also hold a small stock of the latest version to 

issue to our new tenants. We also place a number of copies in the member’s 

room. 

58



3.4.3 The latest versions are appended to this report as Appendix 3 – SKyline Winter 

2021 and Appendix 4 – SKyline Summer 2022. We shall also ensure some hard 

copies are available for committee members at the meeting of our summer edition. 

 

4. Conclusion 

4.1 The Housing team have been working hard to understand the views of our tenants 

to ensure that our customers voice is heard. We now have a robust transactional 

satisfaction platform Rant & Rave alongside a robust biannual feedback magazine 

to our tenants. We shall revisit the Big Listen survey in two years’ time to enable 

us to monitor and evaluate progress made and overall tenant satisfaction with the 

services that we offer. 

4.2 There is a clear understanding throughout the teams of the importance of the 

tenant’s voice and we shall continue to develop and expand our approach to 

ensure that we capture and utilise the experiences of our tenants to shape the 

delivery of the services that we deliver on their behalf. 

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 Notes the contents of this report and the progress made by the Housing and 

Property directorate to improve and embed the importance of communication to 

our tenants in line with the Social Housing White Paper. 

 

6. Consultation 
 

6.1 The report outlines the consultation activity completed and embedded within the 

Housing Service. 

 

7. Background Papers 
 

7.1 The Charter for Social Housing Residents - The Charter for Social Housing 

Residents - Social Housing White Paper (publishing.service.gov.uk) 

 

8. Appendices 
 

8.1 Appendix 1 – Tenant Satisfaction Report 2022 

Appendix 2 – Rant and Rave screenshot 

Appendix 3 – SKyline Winter 2021 

Appendix 3 – SKyline Summer 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

59

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/936103/The_charter_for_social_housing_residents_-_social_housing_white_paper_accessible.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/936103/The_charter_for_social_housing_residents_-_social_housing_white_paper_accessible.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



South Kesteven District Council
Resident Satisfaction Survey

2022

If you would like to find out more information about the survey, please call us on 01476 40 60 80 or email us at 
customerservices@southkesteven.gov.uk

61

A
ppendix O

ne



About the Survey

In March & April 2022, many of you took part in 
an important survey.

The survey focused on how happy you are with 
the way South Kesteven District Council delivers 
key services and maintains your homes. The 
survey was anonymous and carried out by an 
independent market research company - Acuity 
Research & Practice.

The survey was carried out by post, with 
residents being sent a survey and invited to 
complete and return it.

This report contains key results from the survey 
in respect of residents’ opinions about their 
homes and the services they receive. 

A total of 

1,723
residents took 
part out of a 

possible 5,963.

If you would like to find out more information about the survey, please call us on 01476 40 60 80 or email us at 
customerservices@southkesteven.gov.uk

62



Overall Services

Almost three-quarters of residents are satisfied with the overall 
services provided by South Kesteven District Council (72%).

72%

If you would like to find out more information about the survey, please call us on 01476 40 60 80 or email us at 
customerservices@southkesteven.gov.uk

31%

41%

9%

12%

8%

Very satisfied Fairly satisfied Neither Fairly dissatisfied Very dissatisfied

63



The Home & Neighbourhood

Seven out of ten residents are satisfied with the 
quality of their home (68%), with a similar number 
happy that they are provided with a home that is 
well-maintained and safe (67%).

Considerably more residents are satisfied with the 
value for money that their rent represents (78%)
than those who are satisfied with the value for 
money that their service charge represents (65%).

Over half of the residents (57%) feel that South 
Kesteven District Council makes a positive 
contribution to their neighbourhood. Some 71% of 
residents stated that their feel safe and secure in 
their neighbourhood.

If you would like to find out more information about the survey, please call us on 01476 40 60 80 or email us at 
customerservices@southkesteven.gov.uk

68%

67%

69%

78%

65%

57%

71%

Quality of Home

Well-Maintained & Safe

Communal Area Maintenance

Rent Value

Service Charge Value

Positive Contribution to
Neighbourhood

Safe & Secure in Neighbourhood

64



Repairs & Maintenance
Almost three-fifths of residents are satisfied with the way 
South Kesteven District Council deals with repairs and 
maintenance (58%).

58%

Of the 64% of residents who had a repair carried out in 
their home by South Kesteven District Council in the last 12 
months, 68% were satisfied with the service they received 
and 61% were satisfied with the time it took to complete 
the repair.

If you would like to find out more information about the survey, please call us on 01476 40 60 80 or email us at 
customerservices@southkesteven.gov.uk

24%

35%
9%

17%

15% Very satisfied

Fairly satisfied

Neither

Fairly dissatisfied

Very dissatisfied

68%
61%

Repairs Service - Last 12 Months Time to Complete Repair

65



Communications & Engagement

Two-thirds of residents find South Kesteven District 
Council easy to deal with (67%).

49% of residents feel that South Kesteven District 
Council listens to their views and acts upon them.

Finally, 59% of residents feel they are kept informed 
about things that might affect them.

A further 68% are satisfied with the customer 
experience the last time they contacted South 
Kesteven District Council.

67%

68%

59%

49%

Easy to Deal With

Customer Experience

Kept Informed

Listens to Views & Acts

If you would like to find out more information about the survey, please call us on 01476 40 60 80 or email us at 
customerservices@southkesteven.gov.uk

66



Perceptions of South Kesteven 
District Council

63% of residents feel that they are provided with an 
effective and efficient service and 64% feel that this 
is the service they expect from their landlord.

79% of residents feel that South Kesteven District 
Council has friendly and approachable staff.

Finally, 57% believe that the findings of this survey 
will be acted upon.

A further 56% feel that South Kesteven District 
Council cares about its residents and their well-being.

63%

64%

76%

57%

79%

66%

56%

57%

53%

Effective & efficient service

The service expected

Treats residents fairly and
with respect

Good reputation in the area

Friendly & approachable staff

Trustworthy

Cares about residents and
their well-being

Will act on findings

Open & transparent

If you would like to find out more information about the survey, please call us on 01476 40 60 80 or email us at 
customerservices@southkesteven.gov.uk

67



Improving Services

Residents were asked if there was one 
thing that South Kesteven District Council 
could do to improve its services, what 
would they like it to be. 1,228 comments 
were received from the residents, 5% 
gave positive comments and a further 6% 
gave ‘other’ answers and it could be 
construed they don’t feel improvement is 
necessary.

There is a wide variety of suggestions for 
improvement and these are summarised 
in the chart to the right. Some 26% of 
comments concern day-to-day repairs, 
15% customer contact, 10% 
communications, 9% home 
improvements, 6% property condition, 
4% grounds maintenance, 4% 
neighbourhood problems, 4% tenant 
service, 3% organisation policies and 3% 
councils and other agencies.

If you would like to find out more information about the survey, please call us on 01476 40 60 80 or email us at 
customerservices@southkesteven.gov.uk

Day-to-day repairs
26%

Customer contact
15%

Communications
10%

Home 
improvements

9%

Other
6%

Property condition
6%

Positive comments
5%

Grounds 
maintenance

4%

Neighbourhood 
problems

4%

Tenant services
4%

Organisational 
policies

3%

Council, other 
agencies

3%

Safety and security
2%

Communal areas
1%

Local area services
1%

68



You Say – We Do

Carrying out this survey is just part of the work South Kesteven District Council does to 
involve you in developing services. As well as publishing the results of the survey, South 
Kesteven District Council plans to put the findings to good use by working with residents to 
further improve the services they provide.

Publish findings for 
residents

Use findings to plan and 
improve services, e.g. 

improve repairs, external 
maintenance, property 

improvements and 
communications. 

Involve residents in shaping 
service improvements

If you would like to find out more information about the survey, please call us on 01476 40 60 80 or email us at 
customerservices@southkesteven.gov.uk

69



Telephone: 01476 40 60 80 
Email: customerservices@southkesteven.gov.uk

South Kesteven District Council, St Peter’s Hill, Grantham, NG31 6PZ

70



Appendix 2 – Rant and Rave screenshot 

 

71

A
ppendix T

w
o



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Winter 2021
Skyline

for tenants of South Kesteven    

Merry
Christmas

73

Appendix Three



3 2 

Welcome to this Winter 2021 
edition of Skyline – we hope 

you find it an interesting and 
enjoyable read.  

This latest edition is a chance 
to provide you, our tenants and 
leaseholders, with an Annual Report 
on South Kesteven District Council 
in its role as your landlord.

Although the Annual Report 
covers the period to the end of the 
last financial year, from April 2020 
to March 2021, so much continues 
to happen as we work hard to meet 
the standards set by the Regulator 
of Social Housing, that we have 
made this edition a little bigger than 
usual. This allows us to give you 
an update on our work with the 
Regulator.    

By the time you read this, a new 
Assistant Director of Housing, 
Craig Spence, and a new Head of 
Housing Services, Jodie Archer, will 
have joined the team.

Both have excellent experience 
in improving landlord services, 

and it is great to welcome them on 
board. Find out more about them on 
pages 14 and 15, and watch out for 
a detailed article in the next edition 
covering their first few months in 
their new roles.

If you haven’t already received a 
letter from us about a survey of your 
home, then you will do so by the 
end of March 2022.

These surveys are to update the 
Council’s records on the condition 
of its housing stock, so we can plan 
what money needs to be spent on 
things like kitchens and bathrooms 
in future years.

It is really important information 
and we do ask that you allow us 
access so these surveys can be 
done as quickly as possible.  

It was great to see the interest 
in the Garden Competition that 
featured in the last copy of Skyline, 
and you can find out about the 
deserved winners in this edition too!

With our best wishes for the 
season.

New faces feature
in bumper edition

Skyline Winter 2021 www.southkesteven.gov.uk Skyline Winter 2021 www.southkesteven.gov.uk

Tell us how 
we’re doing
We welcome your feedback 

letting us know if we are 
doing something right or wrong.  
Your input helps us to be aware 
of how we are performing and to 
improve our service.

The Council has a new Housing 
Customer Feedback Policy, which 
sets out how we will deal with 
customer feedback in the form 
of complaints, compliments or 
comments.

SKDC is a member of the 
Housing Ombudsman Scheme 
and complies with its Complaints 
Handling Code. It is a requirement 
to handle complaints in 
accordance with this code. 

You can provide 
feedback by:

Reporting it online at 
https://bit.lySKDCfeedback
Emailing Customer 
Services at C.Service@
southkesteven.gov.uk
Calling Customer Services 
on 01476 40 60 80
Speaking to a  
Council Officer
Writing to The Customer 
Services Team, South 
Kesteven District Council
Council Offices, St Peters 
Hill, Grantham, NG31 6PZ
Visiting one of our 
Customer Services offices
Using the Council’s 
Facebook at m.facebook.
com/southkdc (Feedback 
through social media will be 
dealt with in the same way 
as other feedback. As social 
media pages are visible to 
the public, private or personal 
information, including 
information relating to others, 
will not be posted).

Councillor Robert Reid 
Cabinet Member for Housing  
and Property  
 robert.reid@ 
southkesteven.gov.uk

Andrew Cotton
Director of Housing and Property 
 andrew.cotton@southkesteven.
gov.uk

the

listen

If you would like to be part of this, contact our Community Engagement Officer at:  
	HousingFB@southkesteven.gov.uk
 01476 40 60 80

we’re all ears…

The Big Listen is your opportunity to tell us how we 
are doing as your landlord by answering questions 
on the work we have done. The questions cover all 
aspects of the housing service, including repairs, 
and ask you to rate how satisfied or dissatisfied you 
are with the work we have done.

Is SKDC the only  
landlord doing it?
All social landlords carry 
out similar exercises, which 
provides valuable feedback 
from their tenants. It also allows 
us to see how other landlords 
have performed so we know 
how we compare to them.

Why are we doing it?
Your views are important as 
they tell us what we do well, and 
where we need to improve. We 
also want you to tell us what 
you think we should be doing. 
It is important we know your 
thoughts to help us match your 
expectations.

Who will be doing this?
We will use an external 
company to manage the 
questionnaire so your 
responses will be anonymous, 
and you can be honest about 
what you think. We won’t know 
who has said what unless you 
agree you are happy for us to 
know.

Who will be taking part in 
this and how?
We will be sending 
questionnaires to all our tenants 
offering the chance to tell us 
if you’re satisfied or not with 
what we do. You will have the 
option of completing this on a 
paper copy or online via Survey 
Monkey.

Do I have to take part?
You don’t have to take part, but 
the more responses we get, 
the better the feedback will be 
and the better decisions we can 
make based on this. We would 
like to hear from as many of our 
tenants as we can - this is your 
chance to tell us what you think.

When is this going to 
happen?
This will take place within the 
next few months so when you 
receive the questionnaire, 
please look at it and complete it.

What happens with all the 
feedback?
All the information received is 
used to help plan our future offer 
to our tenants.  We will tell you 
what was said and what we are 
going to do about it.

What if I want to give my 
views now?
We are developing a tenants’ 
group who wish to be involved 
in providing feedback on our 
performance. This can be by 
attending meetings, responding 
to surveys or simply telling 
us as and when you wish 
to. Comments can be about 
something we have done; 
something you think we should 
be doing or that we could do; or 
could be about issues in your 
neighbourhood.

What if we don’t like the 
answer?
There is no wrong answer. We 
accept there are things we 
could do better so if you tell us 
we did not do very well, we can 
look at the reasons why that was 
the case, and then at how we 
can improve.

74



4 5 

Driving up our housing standards
Skyline Winter 2021 www.southkesteven.gov.uk Skyline Winter 2021 www.southkesteven.gov.uk

Any questions
If you have any questions, we have a dedicated team to help.  
Email us at housingaudit@southkesteven.gov.uk or call us on 01476 40 61 23 or 01476 40 60 80  
Please press option 3 and then option 4, from Monday to Friday 8.45am to 5pm.

Homes fit for a lifetime
New council housing in Bourne is 

moving closer to completion with 
foundations, floors, timber frames 
and roofs in place and the internal 
fit-out making progress.

The Meadow Close project of four 
one-bedroom flats and three one-
bedroom bungalows is part of South 
Kesteven District Council’s housing 
strategy to build much-needed 
homes across the district.

Developing new homes in line 
with housing demand helps to free 
up other larger properties within the 
SKDC stock to ensure more of our 

residents have somewhere to live 
that suits their needs.

The Meadow Close project, in 
partnership with D. Brown Building 
Contractors Ltd, is set to be 
completed by April 2022. Five more 
new homes will follow in Stamford.

The properties are all built to 
Lifetime Homes standard and will 
be allocated to those on the housing 
register. The new-build homes at 
Bourne follow recent successful 
SKDC developments in Kinoulton 
Court and at Earlesfield Lane, both 
in Grantham.

SKDC is continuing its work to 
drive up the standard of its 

homes for tenants across the District.
Every month two inspectors from 

the Regulator for Social Housing 
meet the Council’s Chief Executive, 
Director of Housing and Property, 
and the Assistant Director of Housing 
and are given the latest performance 
figures for landlord health and safety, 
along with updates on the delivery of 
improvement plans.

Last year the Council referred itself 
to the Regulator in response to the 
findings of an in-depth audit, which it 
had also commissioned itself.

The Cabinet Member for Housing 
and Property, Cllr Robert Reid, said: 
“We provide regular updates on 
compliance figures in areas such as 
gas servicing, asbestos, electrical 
safety and fire risk, together with 
the implementation of our Housing 
Improvement Plan and Sheltered 
Housing Improvement Action Plan.

“The Regulator understands that 
the Council cannot fix everything at 
once, but wants assurance that risks 
are being managed properly.”   

Regular reports on compliance 
with the regulatory standard are 
presented to the Council’s Rural and 
Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. Members are able to ask 
questions and challenge progress.

The reports, improvement plans 
and performance figures are all 
available to members of the public 
on the Council’s website.    

The Regulator publishes a report 
every year called its Consumer 
Regulation Review. On South 
Kesteven District Council, for 
202/21, the report said: “The 
Council has strengthened its senior 
capacity, demonstrating appropriate 
leadership and ownership and has 
developed an action plan to address 

the underlying weaknesses in its 
systems.

“A programme of work has 
commenced, and the Council has 
provided assurance that it has taken 
immediate and appropriate action to 
ensure the safety of tenants while the 
programme was being delivered.”

A full tenant consultation exercise 
– The Big Listen – is being planned, 
which will involve questions about 

both the current experience of 
tenants in terms of the services the 
Council offers as a landlord, and 
what they would like to see prioritised 
in the future.

The Regulator of Social Housing 
ensures landlords promote a viable, 
efficient and well-governed social 
housing sector able to deliver homes 
that meet a range of needs.

It sets consumer standards, and its 

role is to intervene where failure to 
meet the standards has caused, or 
could have caused, harm to tenants. 
The four consumer standards are:
� Home Standard
� Tenancy Standard
� Neighbourhood and Community 

Standard
� Tenant Involvement and 

Empowerment Standard

100%

50%

0%
21

Mar
2021

16
Apr

2021

20
May
2021

18
Jun

2021

19
Jul

2021

27
Aug
2021

22
Sep
2021

21
Mar
2021

16
Apr

2021

20
May
2021

18
Jun

2021

19
Jul

2021

27
Aug
2021

22
Sep
2021

15
Oct

2021

15
Oct

2021

100%

50%

0%

Asbestos (re-inspections) Electrical

21
Mar
2021

16
Apr

2021

20
May
2021

18
Jun

2021

19
Jul

2021

27
Aug
2021

22
Sep
2021

15
Oct

2021

100%

50%

0%

Legionella

21
Mar
2021

16
Apr

2021

20
May
2021

18
Jun

2021

19
Jul

2021

27
Aug
2021

22
Sep
2021

15
Oct

2021

100%

50%

0%

Gas

21
Mar
2021

16
Apr

2021

20
May
2021

18
Jun

2021

19
Jul

2021

27
Aug
2021

22
Sep
2021

15
Oct

2021

100%

50%

0%

Fire Risk Assessments

21
Mar
2021

16
Apr

2021

20
May
2021

18
Jun

2021

19
Jul

2021

27
Aug
2021

22
Sep
2021

15
Oct

2021

100%

50%

0%

Lift Inspections

The latest figures reported to the Regulator are:

75



7 6 

The Change4Lincs partnership is making real progress in helping the long-term 
homeless to have a roof over their heads.

Reaching out to help rough sleepers

I am really proud of how our 
staff continued to support this 
individual and finally persuaded 
them to accept help.
Cllr Robert Reid: SKDC Cabinet 
Member for Housing and 
Property

Teamwork between Change4Lincs 
and SKDC’s Housing Options 

staff is paying off thanks to a pro-
active approach to helping people 
who are sleeping rough.

SKDC is the lead Change4Lincs 
authority, working in partnership with 
North Kesteven, South Holland and 
West Lindsey district councils.

Increased funding is boosting 
the work of its outreach workers in 
identifying and engaging with rough 
sleepers, with some notable results.  

One person who had no fixed 
abode for 18 years had previously 
refused all offers of help finding 
accommodation.. 

Finally, working with housing 
colleagues, Change4Lincs staff 
persuaded the individual to accept 
help.They signed up to the Council’s 
housing register and have now found 
a permanent home.

Cllr Robert Reid, Cabinet Member 
for Housing and Property said: “I am 
really proud of how our staff continued 

to support this individual and finally 
persuaded them to accept help.

“They are now in settled 
accommodation and getting help 
setting up a home.

“Our outreach team has visited on a 
regular basis to check their wellbeing 
and offer small provisions to help 
as much as possible. It’s testament 
to everyone’s hard work that they 
eventually came to accept our offers 
of help.

“I am delighted that we were able 
to offer them a property, and our 
Change4 Lincs team continue to 
support them.

“Homelessness is an issue we 
take extremely seriously and it’s very 
rewarding when we can achieve 
results like this. We are committed 
to giving people a chance to escape 
homelessness and move into settled 
accommodation.”

Change4Lincs provides a new 
response to tackling rough sleeping. 
Outreach teams work with council 

housing options teams to identify and 
engage with rough sleepers, source 
accommodation and provide intensive 
support. 

The project is paid for by each of the 
four partner councils’ Rough Sleeper 
Initiative grants.

Skyline Winter 2021 www.southkesteven.gov.uk Skyline Winter 2021 www.southkesteven.gov.uk

Annual report
2020/21
Welcome to the Housing Services annual report 
for 2020/21 which offers an insight into the work 
we do. South Kesteven District Council aspires to 
provide high quality homes and services to those 
who rent property from the Council.

HOME STANDARD
This standard is all about ensuring you have a decent home and a good repairs service that  

meets your needs and maintains the quality of your home.

25%

22% 52%

1%
of properties 
are bedsits

of properties 
are bungalows

of properties 
are flats

of properties 
are houses

SKDC stock consists of:

14We built new council 
homes in 2020/21 

5,987
SKDC had

There were

properties as of 
March 2021

RIGHT TO 
BUY

81
Right to Buy 
applications  
in 2020/21

SKDC completed

Right to Buys 
in 2020/21

28

14%
1 bedroom 
properties

42%
2 bedroom 
properties

42%
3 bedroom 
properties 2%

4+ bedroom 
properties

76



9 8 

Skyline Winter2021 www.southkesteven.gov.uk Skyline Winter 2021 www.southkesteven.gov.uk

495
properties have 

had improvements

356
voids (empty properties)

We relet

91
Cost of improvements 

£3,639,000

9,463
reactive repairs in 2020/21

We carried out

We have fitted

38
new boilers

We have fitted 75
new bathrooms  

or shower rooms

We have fitted

68
properties

We have 
re-roofed

new kitchens

On average these 
took 24.36 days

On average these 
took 121.17 days

TENANT INVOLVEMENT AND EMPOWERMENT STANDARD
This standard is all about the information, communication and choice provided by the Housing Service and 

what you can do if you’re not satisfied with the service provided.

NEIGHBOURHOODS AND COMMUNITY STANDARD
This standard is about keeping neighbourhoods and communal areas clean and tidy, preventing and  
tackling incidents of anti-social behaviour and supporting tenants who experience it where they live.

TENANCY STANDARD
This standard is all about how council houses are allocated and ensuring that tenants have  

the information and support they need to maintain their tenancy.

63(88%)

There were

complaints resolved  
at stage 1

8(11%)

There were

There was

complaints resolved  
at stage 2

1(1%)

There was

complaint resolved  
at stage 3

housing related 
complaints were 
received during 

2020/21

72 1
Housing 

Ombudsman 
review

20
housing related 

compliments were 
received during 2020/21

1 5Active tenant panel Panel members

 

5,836
tenancies  

(end of March 2021) 5%
introductory tenancies

94%
secure tenancies

1%
other tenancies

We have

We received

Of the 380 
properties let in 

2020/21

Of the 380 
properties let in 

2020/21

266
were general  

needs lets

114
were supported  

housing lets

RENT
ARREARSRENT

97.4%
rent collected  

2020/21

2.6%
arrears of rent 
value at end  

of year

Rent collected 2020/21  

£24,933,474

In 2020/21 there were
There are

1,376
on the housing 

waiting list  
(end of March 21)

750
new housing  

applications in 
2020/21

LETTINGS

298
new lettings

82
transfers

1,445
calls received for  
housing advice

133
tenants 

supported in 
2020/21 457

homeless households  
helped into new 
accommodation

131
cases of 

homelessness 
prevented

402
new anti-social 

behaviour cases
=

29%
Nuisance

17%
Garden condition

15%
Noise

39%
Other

Rent due including arrears b/f  
£25,612,414

77



11 10 

Skyline Winter 2021 www.southkesteven.gov.uk Skyline Winter 2021 www.southkesteven.gov.uk

Digital upgrade to deliver        
faster response times

A £500,000 upgrade of the 
warden call systems is 

under way in South Kesteven 
District Council sheltered housing 
schemes.

Although well-maintained and 
fully functional, the existing 
systems are nearing their 
end of life and, as the UK’s 
communications network will 
complete its move from analogue 
to digital by 2025, a digital 
upgrade is necessary.

 A significant proportion of 
SKDC’s sheltered housing 
schemes have Tunstall warden 
call systems installed, which the 
company is now upgrading in more 
than 1,000 homes. Work began 
in June and will be completed in 
phases up to June 2025.

 The Cabinet Member for 
Housing and Property, Cllr Robert 
Reid, said: “We needed a solution 
that could keep people safe today, 
but also ensure equipment was fit 

for the future.
 “The digital transition means 

we will be able to offer faster and 
more personalised responses to 
residents and provide us with a 
platform to develop our service 
as technology advances.

 “This programme represents 
a significant investment for the 
Council, so we wanted to take a 
measured approach which gave 
us time to explore all the options 
and ensure we were making the 
best decision for our residents.

 “We are confident we are 
deploying the right solutions and 
can phase delivery well ahead 
of the impending digital switch-
over.”

 Tunstall worked closely with 
the Council to review existing 
stock, including warden call, 
community alarm equipment, 
door entry and fire systems.

 As the digital transition 
is completed, the upgrade 
programme will mean residents 
are better connected and 
responded to more quickly.

Significant investment to ensure residents receive 
faster and more personalised response

Value for 
money  
for tenants
When assessing value for 

money for local authority 
tenants, it is important to compare 
the rent paid for other social 
housing property and for private 
rented properties.

Almost all South Kesteven 
District Council properties are let 
at a social rent whereas some 
social housing properties, let by 
private registered providers (also 
known as housing associations), 
often charge an affordable rent, 
which is up to 80% of the market 
rental value.

Private rented properties are let 
at a full market rent.

The figures, above, are the 
average weekly rent (covering all 
bedroom categories) for the South 
Kesteven area in the financial year 
2019/20 and are the most recent 
figures available from www.gov.uk 
and www.ons.gov.uk

Winning 
garden is 
labour  
of love

High cost of missed appointments

Presenting Danny and June Everley with their prize is Sheltered Housing Of-
ficer Triny Harjus.

Keen gardeners Danny and June 
Everley have scooped the Best 

Kept Garden Award for tenants 
of SKDC. The beautiful garden at 
their home in Barrowby is a labour 
of love, and it’s a real team effort to 
keep it looking so great.

Danny does all the heavy lifting 
work, while June does the weeding 
and keeps everything tidy. The 
garden is always evolving, and 
they make little changes and 
improvements every year.

When Danny retired from the 
Army aged 55, he and June moved 
out of military accommodation but 
were unable to get a mortgage 
and had nowhere to live until the 
Council helped them.  

We are continuing to work 
hard to ensure that our 

tenants are safe and one of the 
key requirements in this process is 
gaining access to homes.

You may have been asked, for 
example, to let us into your home 
to service your heating appliance; 
carry out an electric safety check; or 
carry out a stock condition survey.

We usually write well in advance 
to advise that we need to carry out 
these checks, but we are seeing an 
increase in the number of properties 
to which we cannot gain access. 
In some instances, we have made 
multiple attempts to carry out 

South Kesteven 
District Council 

average weekly rent

£77.64
Private Registered 
Provider average 

weekly rent in  
South Kesteven

£86.91
Private average  
weekly rents in  
South Kesteven

£150

essential safety work.
These services are completely 

free when we work together and 
complete them first time around. 
This not only keeps you safe, but 
also removes the risk of you being 
charged for missed appointments.

Not letting the Council or its 
contractors into your home to carry 
out essential maintenance and 
services is a breach of your tenancy 
agreement.

It costs us time and money as 
we need to rebook appointments. 
In cases where we are repeatedly 
denied access, we can seek an 
injunction or warrant through the 

courts giving us a legal right to enter 
your home. We would also pursue 
eviction and you would be at risk of 
losing your home.

Taking tenants to court is always 
a last resort and not one we take 
lightly. It can be easily avoided if you 
ensure you keep your appointment 
or, if you are unavailable, rearrange 
it.

We would like to thank everyone 
who routinely allows us access to 
carry out surveys and services. 
If anyone has any concerns they 
would like to discuss, please contact 
the Compliance Team on  
 01476 40 60 80 (ext 6433).

Danny said: “We were in danger 
of having no home, until SKDC 
came to the rescue. We’ve been 
living here for four years now and 
have a garden of which we can be 
proud.

“We have a passion for 
gardening. We love nature and 
wildlife and we’ve tried to give 

our garden a natural look and a 
woodland feel. We’ve had frogs in 
the garden, lots of species of birds, 
and even a hedgehog.”

As winners they received a 
voucher from SKDC Sheltered 
Housing Officer Triny Harjus which 
will go towards the cost of a rose 
arch over their garden bench.

78



13 12 

Skyline Winter 2021 www.southkesteven.gov.uk Skyline Winter 2021 www.southkesteven.gov.uk

Tackling 
repairs 
backlog
Our Repairs Service is 

currently under significant 
pressure and we are working to 
clear a backlog caused by the 
Covid crisis.

At the height of the pandemic, 
from 1st April 2020 to 31st 
March 2021 we carried out 
9,463 reactive repairs and also 
recorded more than 2,500 jobs 
that were not completed due to 
the restrictions.

While it seems that business 
as usual has been restored, 
there are challenges that are 
affecting our ability to deliver 
the standard of service we 
would like.

You may, for example, have 
had your job delayed due to a 
shortage of materials, which 
is a national issue within the 
construction industry. We are 
working with our supply chain, 
but problems are likely to 
continue for some time yet. 

We understand the delays 
can be frustrating, but are 
recruiting new staff and some 
of our operatives are working 
overtime to tackle the backlog. 
We are now booking routine 
repairs in for January, so are 
about three months behind our 
usual target times.  

Take simple steps to 
minimise risk of Legionella
As a responsible social landlord, 

SKDC has a legal duty to raise 
tenants’ awareness of the risks and 
potential causes of Legionnaires 
disease. The disease can be 
contracted by inhaling small droplets 
of water suspended in the air which 
contain the Legionella bacteria.

 While the chance of contracting 
Legionella from the domestic water 
supply in your home is very low, it is 
important to be able to identify risks 
and report any concerns you may 
have.

 Water droplets can be created 
through spray taps, showers, 
whirlpool baths, hot tubs and, in 
some cases, garden hoses. The 
elderly, very young, people with 
underlying health conditions and 
people who smoke are at more risk.

 Legionella is not usually a problem 
in the home as water is continually 
running through taps and showers, 
and is being pulled through any 
stored water tanks which means the 
bacteria do not have the conditions 
to thrive. 

 Problems can occur, however, if 
your home is left empty for some 
time, such as if you go on holiday or 
have to go into hospital, and water is 
not flushing through the system.

 Where there are communal 

water supplies in sheltered housing 
schemes and blocks of flats the 
Council carries out water risk 
assessments and cleans and flushes 
the water systems.

 Where properties are not on a 
communal water supply, the Council 
has an obligation to ensure water 
systems are in working order. 
To reduce the risk of contracting 
Legionella:
� Report any defects in the system, 

such as brown water indicating 
that rust may be present; if, after 
running the water for several 
minutes, your hot water does 
not get hot enough; or your cold 
water is running very warm.

� Regularly clean, disinfect and 
descale shower heads

� If you are going to be away for 
some time, ensure your shower 
hose and garden hose are empty 
of water

� When you return, run your hot 
and cold water for 5-10 minutes 
to flush fresh water through the 
pipework

 If you have any concerns or 
would like further information 
please contact the Compliance 
Team on 
 01476 40 60 80  
(extension 1210).

Safety first for mobility scooter storage

Lettings process under review

South Kesteven District Council 
is working with residents to 

ensure those with mobility scooters 
are storing them safely.

Residents have been consulted 
on a draft policy designed to 
address health and safety issues.

The Cabinet Member for Housing 
and Property, Cllr Robert Reid, 
said: “The Council recognises 
that mobility scooters help users 
maintain their independence and 
have a positive impact on their 
lives and we are doing everything 
possible to ensure they can 
continue to use them.

“Storing them in communal areas 
could, however, create a fire hazard 
by making it difficult to vacate the 
building in an emergency and the 
draft policy includes advice on how 
to minimise that risk.

A change has been proposed 
to the way in which South 

Kesteven District Council allocates 
its properties, with a choice-
based lettings (CBL) approach 
being considered that would give 
applicants on the housing register 
more control over the lettings 
process.

The proposal has been out 
to consultation and will now be 
considered by Members of the 
Council.

CBL would replace the traditional 
way of allocating housing under 
which housing officers seek to match 
applicants on the housing register to 
available vacancies, based on their 
banding and waiting time

CBL would allow applicants for 
social housing, and existing tenants 
seeking a move, to apply online for 
available properties.

Applicants would be able to apply 
or bid for any home provided they 

are assessed as being eligible for 
that type of property.

The successful bidder is usually 
in the highest band who has been 
waiting the longest. Feedback would 
be published to help other applicants 
assess their chances of success in 
subsequent applications.

The Cabinet Member for Housing 
and Property, Cllr Robert Reid, said: 
“Rather than homes being allocated 
by the Council, CBL would allow 
applicants to bid for the available 
properties they are interested in.

“By advertising homes online 
applicants would be able to see what 
is available and where, which would 
enable them to play a greater role in 
the process of selecting their home. 
Housing associations in the area 
would also advertise their vacancies 
in this way.

“As the system would be more 
transparent, housing applicants 
would have all the information 

necessary to make their own 
informed choices.”

While creating greater choice, CBL 
would also encourage people to take 
more responsibility for their future 
housing and would help people who 
are unlikely to get into social housing 
consider other options to meet their 
requirements.

Other statutory and voluntary 
agencies who support vulnerable 
members of the community would 
play an important role in ensuring 
their clients benefitted from CBL. 

Training would be provided to 
agencies so they could support their 
clients to bid for properties. Advice 
and support would also be available 
from the Council’s Housing Options 
team.

Although it would mainly be 
an online system, there would 
be alternative ways to bid. If this 
approach is approved, it is hoped to 
be introduced in 2022/23.

“We are looking into the 
possibility of having designated 
areas to charge and store mobility 
scooters to reduce the fire risk. 

“There is a limit to how many 
storage facilities there will be 
but, where possible, we will 

accommodate those that are 
already owned by our tenants and 
leaseholders and in cases where 
people do not currently have one, 
but need one.”

The introduction of a Registration 
Scheme is also being considered, 
which would require completion to 
keep or obtain a mobility scooter.

The draft policy sets out how 
the Council will consider requests 
to store mobility scooters, and 
the factors it will consider when 
granting or refusing permission.

Responses to the consultation 
are currently being considered 
before proposals are put forward 
to the Council’s Cabinet for 
consideration.

If the proposed changes are 
approved all those affected will be 
contacted.

Over the Christmas period,  
from 20th December 2021 to 
3rd January 2022, a reduced 
service will be in place when 
we will only take and record 
emergency and urgent repairs.

Please note that the number 
to call if you have an out-of-
hours emergency is  
01476 40 60 40.

79



15 14 

Skyline Winter 2021 www.southkesteven.gov.uk Skyline Winter 2021 www.southkesteven.gov.uk

Team boosted by 
experienced recruits

Sheltered housing team

Help and
advice

Feedback 
helps us 
resolve  
your issues
We want to know how well 

we have responded when 
you have contacted us or we 
have completed something you 
asked us to deal with, such as a 
repair or query over your rent.

To find out, we need you to 
make use of our new feedback 
tool called Rant and Rave. This 
uses text messages or emails 
sent to you to ask how satisfied 
or not you were with the work 
done - and your reasons why.

It’s quick and simple, and it 
gives us instant feedback so 
we can resolve any issues that 
may arise. It was launched 
November so if you have 
received a text message or 
email from us, please respond.

The more feedback we get, 
the more we understand how 
we can improve.

Please remember not 
to include any sensitive or 
personal data in your response. 
All information collected is 
managed in accordance with 
our Privacy Notice, details of 
which are available on our 
website at Privacy notice 
(southkesteven.gov.uk)

 
	https://bit.ly/SKDCprivacy

One of the questions put to Andrew Cotton, Director of Housing and 
Property, in the last edition of Skyline was about management changes, 

and here are two new recruits who joined the Housing Team in November.

Pictured left to right:
Kim Barraclough 
Sheltered Housing Officer  
	01476 40 65 28
Triny Harjus  
Senior sheltered Housing Officer  
	01476 40 65 29
Aleksandra Wasowska  
Sheltered Housing Officer  
	01476 40 65 30
  shelteredhousing@ 
southkesteven.gov.uk

Pictured left to right:
Beth Randall 
Senior Tenancy Support Officer  
  b.randall@southkesteven.gov.uk
Rachael Bradley 
Tenancy Support Officer  
  rachael.bradley@southkesteven.
gov.uk
Stella Darker 
Tenancy Support Officer  
  S.Darker@southkesteven.gov.uk

 Assistant Director of Housing 
Craig Spence joined us on 
November 1. His previous role was 
as an Assistant Director, and he 
has also served as a Deputy Head 
of Housing.

Craig has experience of 
big IT projects and business 
transformation, introducing more 
efficient processes that improve 
the customer experience.  

In his new role he is responsible 
for all aspects of the Council’s 
landlord service, including repairs 
and maintenance, and oversees 
the Council’s housing register.

Our new Head of Housing 
Services, Jodie Archer, started 
with us on November 29.   

Jodie is responsible for the 
Housing Officer, Sheltered Housing, 
and Housing Options teams.   

During her career in local 
government, Jodie has worked in 
Nottinghamshire and more recently 
for Melton Borough Council, where 
she was promoted to Tenancy 
Services Manager. 

She has management experience 
covering community safety, housing 
options, tenancy management, and 
sheltered housing functions.

SKDC has a team of Tenancy 
Support officers who offer 

help and advice on a whole range 
of topics:
� Welfare benefits – maximising 

income and helping with 
applications for benefits

� Rent arrears – assisting 
tenants to avoid further 
action or helping to deal with 
impending court action

� Condition of property – 
weekly support to improve 
conditions; referrals for 
Occupational Therapy 
assessments

� Access to other services – 
working with other agencies 
to increase engagement

� Debt advice  
� Resettlement – help to set up 

tenancies
� Furniture and household 

items – now accepting 
donations and then recycling 
items to people in need

� White goods – either donated 
or through charities

� Foodbank referrals

Support for tenants
At South Kesteven District 

Council we have a dedicated 
Tenancy Support Team that can 
offer practical help, advice, and 
support to our residents to enable 
them to maintain and sustain their 
tenancies.
The Tenancy Support Team  
can assist with:
� Applications for welfare benefits 

to maximise household incomes
� Helping tenants avoid action 

on rent arrears or deal with 
impending court action

� Weekly support to improve the 
condition of property 

� Referrals for Occupational 
Therapist assessments for 
adaptations

� Support to access other services 
and working with other agencies 
to increase engagement.

� Debt and money advice, budget 
setting and money management  

� Setting up a resettlement 
tenancy

� Furniture and household items 
by accepting donations and 
recycling to people in need

� White goods – whether they are 
donated or through charities, 
they are fully tested for safety 

� Foodbank referrals

If you think the Tenancy Support Team can 
help you, please call Customer Services on 
	01476 40 60 80 who will contact one  
of the team on your behalf and request a  
call back.

So far this year the team has helped in almost 250 cases:

Total

244

49
Furniture/ white 

goods

7
Bedroom Tax

9
Personal 

Independence 
Payment

6
Limited Capability 

for Work

1
DRO/ Bankruptcy 

fees

9
Utility Vouchers

39
White goods 
from charities

23
Counil Tax support

1
Child DLA

23
Assistance with 

moves

10
Welfare Benefits 

- Universal 
Credit

2
Attendance 
Allowance

20
DHP - Help with 

moving costs

£

45
Foodbank 
vouchers

If you have questions regarding sheltered housing contact a 
member of our dedicated team. Here’s how to get in touch:

80



Need support regarding Covid-19? 
You can find the latest information, help and support by visiting our website at 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk/coronavirus

Our services Other organisations  
that can help:

National advice lines

South Kesteven District Council
You can contact the Council about 
benefits, rent or other issues. 
We are open by appointment only for 
Council services as follows:
Grantham:  
Monday, 9am to 1pm
Thursday, 1pm to 5pm
Bourne: Monday and Wednesday, 
9am to 5pm
Saturday, 9am to 1pm
Bourne is also for library services  
(no appointment needed).
 01476 40 60 80  
Out of hours 01476 40 60 40
 customerservices@
southkesteven.gov.uk

Tenant Engagement
Contact Ken Linford, Community 
Engagement Officer
 01476 40 60 80
 HousingFB@southkesteven.

gov.uk

Emergency repairs 
 01476 40 60 80 / 01476 59 00 44
Reporting Anti-Social Behaviour 
 01476 40 60 80
	www.southkesteven. 

gov.uk/nuisance
 HousingManagement@

southkesteven.gov.uk
For other kinds of anti-social 
behaviour, such as criminal activity, 
you should contact the police - use 
101 if it is not an emergency.  
(999 if it is an emergency)

SK Community Hub
Help, advice and support for older 
and vulnerable residents during the 
pandemic.
 01476 40 61 77 
 skcommunityhub@
southkesteven.gov.uk

Food Banks 
Support for people who cannot 
afford food or other essentials. In 
the first instance please call the SK 
Community Hub.
 01476 40 61 77 
 skcommunityhub@
southkesteven.gov.uk

Age UK (Lincoln and South 
Lincolnshire)
Companionship, advice and support 
for older people. 
 01522 696 000
	www.ageuk.org.uk/
lincolnsouthlincolnshire/

Lincolnshire County Council
Information and advice on council 
services and support available in 
Lincolnshire. 
 01522 552 222
 customer_services@
lincolnshire.gov.uk

	www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/
coronavirus-support-services

Lincolnshire Resilience Forum 
A county helpline for people  
who are self-isolating.
 01522 782 189
 customer_services@
lincolnshire.gov.uk
	www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/
coronavirus-support-services

Lincolnshire Community  
and Voluntary Service 
A charity supporting the health 
and wellbeing of communities and 
individuals in Lincolnshire.
 01205 510 888
	www.lincolnshirecvs.org.uk/
covid-19/

Grantham & District Poverty 
Concern Group
Supports vulnerable members of the 
community to relieve both poverty 
and homelessness.
Contact Chris Thomas on 
 07517 943 792 or via 
 granthampovertyconcern 
@gmail.com        
	www.granthampoverty 
concern.org.uk

Citizens Advice
 03444 111 444
	www.citizensadvice.org.uk/
about-us/contact-us

Department for Work and 
Pensions (DWP)
 0345 606 0265
	www.gov.uk/government/
organisations/department-for-
work-pensions

Victim Support
 0808 506 1688
	Victimsupport.org.uk

The National Domestic Abuse 
Helpline 
 0808 200 0247

NHS- non-urgent medical need
 111   
	www.111.nhs.uk/

16 

Skyline Winter 2021 www.southkesteven.gov.uk

81



This page is intentionally left blank



Summer 2022
Skyline

for tenants of South Kesteven    

Housing that 
meets the 
needs of all 
residents

83

Appendix Four



2 

Skyline Summer 2022 www.southkesteven.gov.uk

Celebrating community champions
Make your nominations at   
www.southkesteven.gov.uk/skcommunityawards

S K 
C O M M U N I T Y

Our popular Gardening Competition is running again 
for the second year in a row – and it’s now up to you 

to showcase the brilliant work done in SKDC tenants’ 
gardens. As before, we are keeping it simple by having 
just one category from which we will choose the best 
three examples.  

Submission is easy – simply send three 
photographs that show your garden at its best to 
us at HousingFB@southkesteven.gov.uk or post 
them to us at Housing Services. The best entries 
will feature in the next issue of skyline. 
Closing date: 31st August

THE CATEGORIES ARE:
›	 Standard gardens – front or rear
›	 Communal, shared or group gardens
›	 Containers, hanging baskets 

With this year’s festivities, there is also 
room for any Jubilee-themed submissions 
with a £25 prize for the best of these. There 
will be three main prizes: £75 for 1st, £50 
for 2nd and £25 for 3rd. 

84



3 

Welcome to this latest edition of 
your Skyline magazine! We 

hope it provides a useful update 
on the Council’s activities as your 
landlord.

Our last edition provided an 
Annual Report on our performance 
and, looking at the contents of this 
latest edition, there is plenty to 
report on again.

We have answers to some 
questions posed by tenants; an 
update on the ongoing progress 
with the Regulator of Social 
Housing; and information about your 
responsibilities to allow us access to 
your home when we, as a landlord, 
need to inspect it.

We would like to put on record 
a personal thanks to the many of 
you that took the time to complete 
our Big Listen survey – some early 

results are included in this edition. 
We hope it assures you that your 
views are important and that our 
plans to continue improvements to 
the Housing Service will take them 
into account.  

As you can see from the front 
cover, we remain committed to 
providing good quality housing, 
including new build properties for 
rent. Meadow Close, Bourne, is 
the first of two new-build sites, 
with a second at Trinity Road, 
Stamford, set to bring a further five 
bungalows.

These homes are built using a 
sustainable and energy efficient 
timber frame, pre-cut and 
assembled on site in panels - which 
reduces building time compared to 
similar traditional construction and 
reduces waste through off-cuts.

Timber frame also allows for open 
plan spaces, particularly useful for 
wheelchair users.

The walls are fully insulated to a 
better standard than traditional-build 
properties, giving more efficient 
heating. 

The flats also benefit from large 
floor-to-ceiling windows to maximise 
natural lighting, which also reduces 
running costs for tenants.

Rest assured though that we 
know our existing properties 
need careful investment and 
improvements, which is why our 
Stock Condition Survey has been 
happening – again, our thanks to 
those of you who gave access.  

We know many tenants are keen 
gardeners so, if you’re one, look out 
for our Garden Competition which is 
back again this year!  

Your views will help shape 
Housing Service improvements

Skyline Summer 2022 www.southkesteven.gov.uk

Councillor Robert Reid 
Cabinet Member for Housing  
and Property  
 robert.reid@ 
southkesteven.gov.uk

Andrew Cotton
Director of Housing and Property 
 andrew.cotton@southkesteven.
gov.uk

Front cover:
New Coucil homes in Meadow Close, 
Bourne (top) and Trinity Road, Stamford.

85



4 

Driving up our housing standards
Skyline Summer 2022 www.southkesteven.gov.uk

In our last edition, we listed some 
“frequently asked questions” about 

working with the Regulator of Social 
Housing. 

The monthly meetings between 
inspectors from the Regulator and 
South Kesteven District Council’s 
Chief Executive, our Director of 
Housing and Property, and the 
Assistant Director of Housing, have 
continued. These allow us to share 
the latest performance figures for 

landlord health and safety (gas 
servicing, for example) and updates 
on the various improvement plans 
that are being delivered. 

Every two months, a report is 
presented to the Council’s Rural and 
Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on Compliance with the 
Regulatory Standard.

The Committee asks questions 
and challenges progress. The report, 
improvement plans and performance 

figures are all freely available to 
everyone on the Council’s website 
https://bit.ly/Housingstandards

The latest figures reported to the 
Regulator are shown below. 

It is good news that by the end of 
April, 100% of gas appliances were 
certified as compliant and all other 
indicators were moving in a positive 
direction. We remain committed to 
ensuring the safety of tenants, their 
families, and visitors.

The latest figures reported to the Regulator for 
 Housing Compliance in April are:

100%

84% 83% 70%

100% 100%
Fire Risk 

Assessments

LegionellaElectrical 
Work

Gas 
Checks

Asbestos  
(re-inspections)

Lift 
Inspections

Any questions
If you have any questions, we have a dedicated team to help.  

Email us at housingaudit@southkesteven.gov.uk or call us on 01476 40 61 23 or 01476 40 60 80  
Please press option 3 and then option 4, from Monday to Friday 8.45am to 5pm.

STAGE

01
Investigated by 
management 
level officer in 

housing. 
Response within 
10 working days.

STAGE

02
Review of response 

by management 
level officer in non-

housing service. 
Response within 
20 working days.

STAGE

03
Ombudsman

Review of  
response by Housing 

Ombudsman
www.housing-

ombudsman.org.uk

If still not 
satisfied

If not 
satisfied

Initial 
complaint 

made

Complaints procedure for Council tenants

86



5 

Skyline Summer 2022 www.southkesteven.gov.uk

Cancer campaigner lands role as 
Commonwealth Batonbearer
South Kesteven tenancy officer 

Rachael Bradley will take part 
in the Queen’s Baton Relay through 
her home town of Grantham.

Birmingham 2022 is hosting the 
16th official Queen’s Baton Relay - 
a journey which brings together and 
celebrates communities across the 
Commonwealth during the build up 
to the Commonwealth Games.

Rachael was nominated by SKDC 
in recognition of her work informing 
and helping those affected by breast 
cancer after successfully fighting 
her own battle against the illness.

She is part of our tenancy services 
team and is one of the friendly 
voices at the end of the line when 
tenants call in with questions or 
problems to solve.

Rachael is now in remission, but 
her 2020 diagnosis inspired her 
and long-term friend Sara Green to 
set up Breast Friends Grantham to 
raise awareness and offer support.

The aim of the group, now 
numbering nearly 100 members, is 
to help reduce anxieties, improve 
wellbeing and empower people.

It’s that work which prompted a 
successful nomination by SKDC to 
baton relay organisers, describing 
Rachael as a true inspiration and 
“an incredibly humble human being 
who is making a big impact in the 
local community.”

Rachael will now join other 
batonbearers on Monday 11th July 
for the Grantham stage of the relay, 
starting and finishing at Wyndham 
Park Visitor Centre.

She said: “If sharing my breast 
cancer journey has saved one life, 
it’s a job well done!

“Cancer is a terribly cruel disease 
and having endured the hardest 18 
months of my life, I know that raising 
awareness is so important. I feel 
incredibly privileged to have been 
nominated for such a prestigious and 

significant event in my home town.
“My breast cancer diagnosis has 

made me passionate about raising 
awareness and money for those 
charities that work tirelessly to help 
provide cancer treatment and fund 
research into finding a cure for this 
awful disease.”

A recent Into the Light evening at 
Grantham Cricket Club attended by 
140 people raised just shy of £3,500 
for two cancer charities, Breast 
Cancer Now and the Teenage 
Cancer Trust.

A teacher nominated by SKDC 

for their work for good causes has 
also been named for Queen’s Baton 
Relay through Grantham.

Hannah San Jose uses her 
marathon running to raise money 
for Kenyan charity Educate For 
Life and is actively involved in 
Grantham’s Junior Park Run.

Her nomination to relay organisers 
from SKDC stressed her dedicated 
community volunteer role, fitting 
around her work as a primary 
school teacher.

Hannah works with migrant 
communities and refugees through 
Grantham’s Jubilee Church Life 
Centre, where 34 nations are 
represented in its congregation, 
including many Commonwealth 
countries.

Hannah has spent two years 
working in Kenya with Educate 
For Life, supported by the Jubilee 
Church, helping young people 
qualify for university and medical 
studies.

If sharing my breast cancer 
journey has saved one life, it’s a 
job well done!
Rachael Bradley, Tenancy 
Officer, SKDC

The Leader of SKDC, Cllr Kelham Cooke, with Rachael Bradley 
cofounder of Breast Friends, Grantham

87



6 

Skyline Summer 2022 www.southkesteven.gov.uk

Tenants can play their part in keeping communal areas litter-free
Keeping neighbourhoods tidy
Managing household refuse 

has come under the spotlight 
recently, with an increase in 
household rubbish and large items 
being dumped on the ground in 
communal bin stores.  

Across the district, SKDC’s 
caretakers regularly pick up excess 
rubbish before the bins are emptied.  

This amounts to an average of 
four tonnes a month, costing the 
Housing budget around £600 plus 
the additional cost of disposing of 
it – money which could be used to 
benefit tenants.

The pictures on this page show 
the extent of what is happening.

Cabinet Member for Housing and 
Property, Cllr Robert Reid, said: 
“We urge tenants to dispose of their 
rubbish in a responsible manner by 
placing it in the bins provided.  

“Bulky items that can’t fit in the bin 
can be disposed of either by taking 
it to local tip or arranging for it to be 
picked up by us as part of the bulk 
item collection scheme.

“It is more than just the way it 
looks that is an issue. It also attracts 
vermin and could lead to injury or 
illness for children playing nearby 
or a risk of harm to pets in the area 

getting hold of the rubbish causing 
further mess.”   

Tenants who have excess rubbish 
and use a private collection service, 
should ensure the operator has the 
necessary licence for disposing of 
items. If rubbish is fly-tipped and 
can be traced back to the original 
owner, it could result in a fine for 
them as well as for the person doing 
the tipping.

Anyone can check a waste 
contractor is legal and registered 
by calling the 
Environment Agency on 
 03708 506506 or visiting 
	https://bit.ly/check-waste-
carrier

88



7 

A meet and greet event for SKDC 
tenants has taken place at the 

Riverside sheltered housing complex 
on Welham Street, Grantham.

It is part of the Council’s 
commitment to work closely with the 
people who use its services. 

As well as introducing housing 
officers to residents, the event also 
served to reinvigorate the communal 
areas after activities were curtailed 
during the pandemic.

SKDC tenancy staff, housing 
services, supported housing and 
maintenance teams were on hand 
at the informal session to answer 
questions and help tenants link 
names with faces. 

Tenancy Services Manager Andre 
Ford-Hamilton said at the event: 
“We’re interested in hearing the 
opinions of tenants, what they have 
to say. We are here to support them 

across the board and it’s great news 
that we can all meet up face-to-face 
again.”

Tenants were able to talk about 
litter picking and the outdoor 
space, maintenance staff and 
SKDC tradespeople were there to 
answer questions on upgrades and 
renovation, with the caretaker and 
other housing staff also on hand to 
chat over tea, coffee and cakes. The 
event was rounded off with a prize 
quiz.

Cabinet Member for Housing and 
Property, Cllr Robert Reid, said: “The 
welfare of our tenants is one of our 
key priorities as a housing provider 
and we are keen to encourage more 
tenant involvement, particularly in our 
sheltered housing. 

“It was a two-way process of 
giving information, inviting questions, 
offering surveys and providing 

support to some of our more 
vulnerable tenants. We’re very much 
looking forward to getting out and 
about across the district in the months 
ahead.”

Further events are planned for 
tenants of other SKDC sheltered 
housing schemes.

Skyline Summer 2022 www.southkesteven.gov.uk

Meet and greet for sheltered housing tenants

Meet our Riverside staff

Carol Fisher
Housing Officer
 01476 40 60 80

Carol.Fisher@ 
southkesteven.gov.uk

Kim Barraclough
Sheltered Housing Officer

 07971 344043
Kim.barraclough@

southkesteven.gov.uk

Nigel Smith
Development Project Officer

 01476 406 395 / 07813 350 433
nigel.smith@ 

southkesteven.gov.uk

Meet and greet with tenants and staff Riverside tenants Susan Cossar and Pat Chambers

Quiz winner Paul Dixon

89



8 

Skyline Summer 2022 www.southkesteven.gov.uk

Tenants in our sheltered housing and general needs housing were asked for their 
thoughts on proposals to introduce a Mobility Scooter Policy.

Good response to mobility scooter plans

Around 500 responses were 
received to a survey on a 

proposed policy covering the 
ownership of mobility scooters by 
tenants.

They will all be considered when 
deciding whether to go ahead with the 
proposals.

Part of the Mobility Scooter Policy 
is about introducing a scooter 
registration scheme.

This means that permission must 
be sought from the Council before 
acquiring a scooter.

Owners must register their scooters 
with the Council and abide by rules 
governing its use. The survey showed 
that 60% of respondents were in 
favour of scooters being registered, 
while some felt it could prevent 
them having a scooter and lead to a 
significant impact on their mobility and 
independence. 

The requirement for insurance and 
testing was also an issue for many 
who felt it was not needed.

As storage space is limited, the 
Council has proposed that permission 
to have a scooter should first be 
granted to those with blue disability 
badges.

Those who already have a scooter 
would be next in line, followed by 
those wishing to purchase or lease a 
scooter – 62% of respondents agreed 
with this. 

Despite broad agreement, many felt 

The survey showed that 60% of 
respondents were in favour of 
scooters being registered.

that a blue badge alone could not 
be relied upon to indicate mobility 
problems as that was not the only 
reason for having a blue badge.

We are also proposing that 
mobility sooters must only be kept 
in dedicated storage areas and 
charged using the power sockets 
provided in these areas.

The aim is to reduce the risk of fire 
and damage to property and injury 
to individuals. While 66% agreed 
on the need for a dedicated storage 
space, the main concerns were the 
distance from that area to their door 
and the limited space that would be 
available.

Regarding charging of scooters, 
many pointed out they used the 
scooter in the daytime and charged 
it at night, or charged it as and when 
they needed to, so a fixed charging 
time would be impractical.

90



9 

Skyline Summer 2022 www.southkesteven.gov.uk

Safety and access – why we sometimes 
need to visit your home
Ensuring that our properties are 

safe is paramount and to do 
that we need to work with tenants 
to ensure that access to homes is 
granted for the regular checks we 
are required by law to complete.

As well as fulfilling our legal duties, 
conducting these safety checks will 
give tenants and their families peace 
of mind. They also help our officers 
ensure that we can address any 
risks and effectively manage our 
properties. 

To organise a visit, we might 
contact tenants by letter, email, in 
perrson or on the phone.

Government regulations mean that 
we have to perform some important 
landlord duties to help us comply 
with national standards. Managing 
this across our wide range of 
properties and tenants can be quite 
a challenge. 

Compliance itself has many 
aspects, and the complexities vary 
according to which kind of property 
we are managing. As a landlord we 
have different responsibilities for, and 
different rights of access to, tenanted 
and leasehold properties.

We may need to come into your 
home to ensure the gas certificate is 
completed, to keep it safe not just for 
the individual tenant but for an entire 

block. This makes allowing access 
for this regular check imperative.  

We are working well with our 
tenants and it is positive to see 
the inroads the Housing Service is 
making to ensure tenants are safe in 
their homes.

To help this process of checking 
and gathering safety information and 
other data on your property, when 
you get in touch we may ask you 
for up-to-date contact details and 
preferred means of contact, as this 

helps us manage our services and 
your safety. 

Please bear in mind that as 
a landlord we collect, store 
and process large quantities of 
information every day to understand 
and deliver on safety within your 
home. This covers gas, electrics, 
water, asbestos and fire safety. 
The largest hurdle to overcome 
is ensuring all this information is 
accurate and up to date so that we 
can also meet your future needs.

Because it is so important to 
make these checks, and because 
some tenants are not allowing us in 
to do them, we have adopted a new 
process.

As a result, failure to allow us 
access could result in a bill and/
or a warrant to enter properties to 
fulfil our landlord responsibilities. 
Ultimately this could lead to 
possession proceedings due to 
breaches of tenancy. 

Please allow access to keep you 
safe, prevent any penalties and 
have peace of mind. Our thanks go 
to all our tenants who work with us 
to achieve compliance.

91



10 

Skyline Summer 2022 www.southkesteven.gov.uk

Around 29% of tenants and 
leaseholders took the time to 

respond to our full tenant survey - 
the Big Listen.

We wanted to know what you 
think of the service and what the 
future priorities should be to deliver 
housing that meets the needs of all 

residents as we work to produce 
a new blueprint for our service to 
you.

The Housing Revenue Account 
is a ring-fenced account separate 
from the Council’s General 
Fund that contains the income 
and expenditure relating to the 

management and maintenance of 
the housing stock.

Our Business Plan sets out the 
priorities, plans and actions for council 
housing over the next 30 years and 
considers how we will spend the 
money we expect to receive from 
rents and other sources.

Plans in hand for Housing Service blueprint

We use our income from rents to pay for a range of different things.  
They include:

Day-to-day repairs and 
maintenance. We are 
responsible for some of 
the repairs that might be 
needed in your home, 
which are carried out by 
our repairs team.

Gas servicing and fire 
safety. We take all safety 
obligations very seriously. 
All gas heating systems are 
serviced every ten months 
and regular 
fire risk 
assessments 
are carried 
out on our 
blocks of flats 
and sheltered 
housing 
schemes.

Sheltered housing. We 
provide around 1,020 properties 
designated as sheltered housing 
accommodation. Sheltered  
scheme tenants are supported  
by sheltered  
housing officers.

Housing service business costs. These costs 
include maintaining our IT systems, managing 
complaints and generally improving our services.

Tenancy management. This 
service collects rent, ensures that 
tenants understand their rights 
and responsibilities, deals with 
anti-social behaviour complaints 
and any tenancy administration 
duties.

Building or buying new council 
housing. We are constantly 
looking to expand our housing 
stock to meet local housing need.

Planned maintenance. To 
maintain the quality of our 
properties, we carry out a range 
of planned maintenance works. 
These include external decorating, 
replacement kitchens, bathrooms, 
windows, doors, or  
electrics (depending  
on property type).

RENT

92



11 

Skyline Summer 2022 www.southkesteven.gov.uk

The full results of the survey will be published 
on our website, and we will be doing more 
consultation with tenants, staff and Members in 
the coming months to explore the best ways of 
meeting residents’ priorities. Here is a snapshot 
of some of the responses.

Q1: Taking everything into 
account, how satisfied or 

dissatisfied are you with the 
service provided by SKDC as 

your landlord?

Q2: How satisfied or dissatisfied 
are you with the overall quality of 

your home?

Q5: Thinking specifically about 
the building you live in, how 

satisfied or dissatisfied are you 
that SKDC provides a home that 
is well maintained and safe for 

you to live in?

the

listen
survey results

72% 68% 67%20% 24% 25%
Q12: How satisfied or dissatisfied 
are you with the way SKDC deals 
with repairs and maintenance?

Q18: How satisfied or dissatisfied 
were you with the overall 

experience of contacting SKDC?

Q35: Would you be interested 
in the Council exploring new 

technologies to enhance energy 
efficiency in your homes?

58% 32% 68% 20% 77% 23%

The HRA Business Plan will go 
to the Council’s Cabinet for a 

decision later this year, with a report 
in the next edition of Skyline.

It will show the Council’s 
commitment to maintaining our 
housing assets and delivering a 
quality, customer-focused service, 
as well as improving homes and 
neighbourhoods.

Next steps
Another key activity to support 

our Business Plan review 
is up-to-date information on the 
Council’s housing stock so, for 
example, we can understand when 
to expect kitchens and bathrooms 
need replacement.

The last full Stock Condition 
Survey was completed in 2009 so 
we needed to bring our information 

up to date.
It is concerning that several 

properties have not been surveyed 
due to a lack of access, although 
70% of properties have been 
surveyed, including 94% of blocks. 

This will allow the development 
of the HRA Business Plan in this 
financial year.

Stock condition survey  

93



12 

Skyline Summer 2022 www.southkesteven.gov.uk

Housing chief answers your questions

Q Does the Council’s approach 
to accepting refugees mean 

those on the waiting list will be 
given lower priority for housing in 
favour of refugees?

AThis is a common misunder-
standing. Asylum seekers are 

not eligible for rehousing by the 
Council, but people granted refugee 
status by the Home Office can make 
an application or seek help with 
homelessness.

In terms of the two major 
refugee crises in recent months, in 
Afghanistan and Ukraine, Councils 
across Lincolnshire have pledged 
to support with accommodation 
for Afghan nationals, and South 
Kesteven has made two offers of 
permanent accommodation as part 
of that. 

The Council is supporting the 
Government’s Homes for Ukraine 
scheme by doing home checks 
for sponsors who are offering 
accommodation for those fleeing 
the conflict. No accommodation 
has been offered by the Council in 
relation to this scheme. 

All applications are assessed 
according to SKDC’s Allocations 
Policy, which is available on the 
Council’s website. 

Scrutiny Committee for its input, so 
this is a work in progress and we 
hope you will see improvements 
over the next few months.

Q Why does the Council 
send letters from external 

companies (without Council 
branding or anything to show 
they are from the Council) 
about work to be done too far 
in advance, rather than contact 
tenants nearer to the time with a 
reminder?

AI agree that letters from external 
contractors should always have 

SKDC branding and contact details 
on, so you know they are genuine.

I think this question relates to 
letters regarding recent property 
surveys and electrical inspections, 
some of which were sent out 
months in advance.

Even if you have had a letter, 
please ask to see ID when someone 
comes to your door – Council 
officers and our contractors will 
always be more than happy to prove 
to you who they are.

We will make sure contractor 
appointments are sent out giving 
reasonable notice. 

Andrew Cotton
Director of Housing and Property 
 andrew.cotton@
southkesteven.gov.uk

Q Has any progress been made 
on creating a handyman 

service to help tenants do basic 
DIY tasks around their home?

AAs mentioned earlier in this 
magazine, we are making 

changes to our Business Plan to 
bring in the service improvements 
everyone wants to see.

I’m happy to commit to that plan 
– which includes provision for a 
handyman-style service – and we 
will consult with tenants about the 
sort of jobs they would like included.

Q What is happening with 
the grass cutting service – 

especially for communal areas 
where the grass has not been 
mowed?

AThe Cabinet Member for 
Housing and Property, Cllr 

Robert Reid, and I have been on 
several visits, and we agree that 
grounds maintenance needs further 
improvement.

We are engaged with ESK, the 
company that provides this service, 
to develop a more detailed and 
comprehensive specification. We 
have also taken a report to the 
Council’s Rural and Communities 

94



13 

Skyline Summer 2022 www.southkesteven.gov.uk

Your feedback can bring about change
As your landlord it is important 

for South Kesteven District 
Council to understand how you feel 
about the services that we deliver. 

With that in mind we launched 
a new online platform inviting our 
tenants to be heard in real time – 
and this new customer satisfaction 
software solution went live in April. 

This enables us to create 
customer satisfaction surveys to be 
sent out via SMS/text messaging or 
in an email. 

We need to hear the voice of 
our tenants and understand what 
we do well and - more importantly 
- what you feel we don’t do so 
well, so that we can learn from our 
mistakes and improve.

We also receive insights into key 
words and phrases that are posted 
in response. So far these are telling 
us that you are generally satisfied 
with the service that you receive 
but that our speed of service could 

be improved. So far we have 
received more than 222 responses. 
The feedback is telling us that our 
staff are friendly, polite, helpful and 
quick.

Initial results have been positive 
with an overall satisfaction rating of 
4.3 out of 5.

 The Cabinet Member for 
Housing and Property, Cllr Robert 

Reid, said: “If you receive a 
request from us for feedback then 
please take the opportunity and 
time to complete and be assured 
that we will use your comments 
and feedback in our continuous 
improvement approach.

 “Our commitment to you is to 
include results in every edition of 
Skyline and provide an update 
to the procedures and working 
practices your feedback has helped 
to change.

“I look forward to seeing your 
feedback over the coming months 
- and I want to reassure you that as 
a landlord we are listening to the 
tenants and that you really do have 
influence in the way that we are 
delivering these important services 
to you.” 

SKDC is the first local authority to 
adopt this software, although it is in 
widespread use across the private 
sector and Housing Associations.

Our commitment to you is 
to include results in every 
edition of Skyline and provide 
an update to the procedures 
and working practices your 
feedback has helped to 
change.
Cabinet Member for Housing and 
Property, Cllr Robert Reid

 4.3  
OUT OF 

5

  
CUSTOMER 

SATISFACTION 
RATING

95



14 

Skyline Summer 2022 www.southkesteven.gov.uk

Proactive fire checks 
help keep tenants safe
South Kesteven District 

Council takes fire safety very 
seriously.

As part of this we monitor and 
report on our compliance monthly 
and note any fire actions that we 
need to respond to. 

This could involve anything from 
ensuring the signs in our blocks 
of flats are clear and up-to-date; 
explaining what to do in the 
event of a fire; or undertaking risk 
assessments with our vulnerable 
tenants to ensure that, in the 
event of a fire, the fire service can 
respond appropriately.

We also have to ensure that 
the doors are fire-safe where 
necessary - and to manage and 
own this process the Council has 
successfully achieved BM TRADA 
accreditation to certify our own 
fire doors. 

This is a huge step forward for 
us as a landlord, which means 
that we are now responsible for 

this key requirement ourselves, 
and we can be proactive in our 
checks to ensure our tenants are 
safe. 

The 2021 Fire Safety Bill has 
now passed into law, and as your 
landlord we are ensuring that 
as part of our ongoing fire risk 
assessments we: 
 Identify fire hazards
 Identify people at risk
 Evaluate, remove or reduce 

and protect against remaining 
risk

 Identify action to be taken 
if fire doors are found to be 
inadequate

 Record, plan, instruct, inform 
and train

 Ensure that we regularly 
review your risk assessment

We work closely with the 
Regulator, reporting that we 
have taken all the steps we need 
to, to protect the tenants of our 
properties from the risk of fire.

Housing 
help for 
veterans
A member of South Kesteven 

District Council’s housing 
allocations team had a day to 
remember when he attended a 
graduation ceremony at the Royal 
Military Academy Sandhurst.

Drew Palmer, an Army Cadet 
Force volunteer, has achieved 
leadership and management, plus 
education and training awards, 
through the Cadet Vocational 
Qualifications Organisation.

He was presented with certificates 
at the CVQO Spring Graduation 
Ceremony at the world-famous 
Army training academy.

“I had an amazing day at an 
amazing place,” said Drew, pictured 
above. “It was a privilege to visit 
Sandhurst where so many military 
personnel have been taught 
leadership skills.”

Cllr Annie Mason, SKDC Cabinet 
Member for People and Safer 
Communities, said: “We are lucky 
to have Drew’s military awareness 
within our housing team when it 
comes to helping veterans with 
housing needs.”

Drew runs cadet detachments 
at Bourne, following years with 
detachments at Grantham’s Prince 
William of Gloucester Barracks for 
the Royal Logistics Corps and The 
Royal Lancers.

His 12 to 18-year-old groups 
follow a military-based syllabus 
including shooting, first aid, forest 
craft, marksmanship, helping to instil 
citizenship, respect and loyalty.

96



15 

Skyline Summer 2022 www.southkesteven.gov.uk

A day in the life of housing officer Triny
Hello! My name is Triny Harjus 

and I am the Senior Sheltered 
Housing Officer for South Kesteven 
District Council.

I start each day by checking 
my emails to see if there are any 
emergencies I need to deal with, 
and then head to Grantham to 
collect my work vehicle and meet 
the two other sheltered officers so 
we can discuss any urgent issues 
and plan our day ahead.

South Kesteven has 30 sheltered 
schemes across the district, in 
Grantham, Bourne, Stamford 
and rural areas, and each of us 
manages ten schemes.

When we arrive at a sheltered 
scheme, the fire alarm is tested 
and then all the other health and 
safety checks are completed on 
the building and outside communal 
areas.

We also monitor the cleanliness, 
with any issues dealt with or 
reported to the appropriate team.

Working closely with tenants is key 
in my role. It could be that they have 
repair issues or other concerns. I 
support each issue where I can or 
pass them to a more appropriate 
colleague in another team.

I will also visit tenants if a specific 
request has been made. 

As I am out and about a lot it often 
works better for tenants to get in 
touch via telephone or to contact our 

Customer Service team, who can 
pass on any urgent issues. During 
the day I can receive a huge variety 
of queries, anything from issues 
with parking, complaints about 
communal doors being left open to 
noise and concerns regarding anti-
social behaviour.

When I am back at my desk, I go 
through all my messages and get 
back to people, I work with many 
departments to resolve a variety of 
queries and issues.

As you might guess, my day 
sometimes doesn’t always go as 
planned and from time to time 
emergencies may arise, which 
mean I might need to attend another 
site on the other side of the district.

This could be anything from a 
gas leak to flooding in a property, 

or perhaps an emergency alarm 
system failure at a sheltered 
scheme, or an urgent welfare check 
required on a tenant. 

Once all checks are completed 
for the day, I record and complete 
all the relevant paperwork then plan 
my next working day.

We have such lovely tenants in 
our sheltered schemes, and I enjoy 
my job very much.

It gives me great pleasure 
knowing that I can support them 
and make a positive change to their 
lives.

I also work with great teams in 
South Kesteven Council and value 
their support and knowledge.

By all working closely together we 
are achieving excellent outcomes 
for our tenants.

97



If you are online 
You can find the latest information, and browse our services on our website at 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk

Our services
Other organisations  
that can help:

National advice lines

South Kesteven District Council
You can contact the Council about 
benefits, rent or other issues. 
We are open by appointment only for 
Council services as follows:
Grantham:  
Monday, 9am to 1pm
Thursday, 1pm to 5pm
Bourne: Monday and Wednesday, 
9am to 5pm
Saturday, 9am to 1pm
Bourne is also for library services  
(no appointment needed).
 01476 40 60 80  
Out of hours 01476 40 60 40
 customerservices@
southkesteven.gov.uk

Tenant Engagement
Contact Ken Linford, Community 
Engagement Officer
 01476 40 60 80
 HousingFB@southkesteven.

gov.uk

Emergency repairs 
 01476 40 60 80 / 01476 59 00 44
Reporting Anti-Social Behaviour 
 01476 40 60 80
	www.southkesteven. 

gov.uk/nuisance
 HousingManagement@

southkesteven.gov.uk
For other kinds of anti-social 
behaviour, such as criminal activity, 
you should contact the police - use 
101 if it is not an emergency.  
(999 if it is an emergency)

SKDC Customer Services
Help, advice and support
 01476 40 60 80 
 customerservices@
southkesteven.gov.uk

Age UK (Lincoln and South 
Lincolnshire)
Companionship, advice and support 
for older people. 
 01522 696 000
	www.ageuk.org.uk/
lincolnsouthlincolnshire/

Lincolnshire County Council
Information and advice on council 
services and support available in 
Lincolnshire. 
 01522 552 222
 customer_services@
lincolnshire.gov.uk
	www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/
coronavirus-support-services

Lincolnshire Resilience Forum 
A county helpline for people  
who are self-isolating.
 01522 782 189
 customer_services@

lincolnshire.gov.uk
	www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/
coronavirus-support-services

Lincolnshire Community  
and Voluntary Service 
A charity supporting the health 
and wellbeing of communities and 
individuals in Lincolnshire.
 01205 510 888
	www.lincolnshirecvs.org.uk/
covid-19/

Grantham & District Poverty 
Concern Group
Supports vulnerable members of the 
community to relieve both poverty 
and homelessness.
Contact Chris Thomas on 
 07517 943 792 or via 
 granthampovertyconcern 
@gmail.com        
	www.granthampoverty 
concern.org.uk

Citizens Advice
 03444 111 444
	www.citizensadvice.org.uk/
about-us/contact-us

Department for Work and 
Pensions (DWP)
 0345 606 0265
	www.gov.uk/government/
organisations/department-for-
work-pensions

Victim Support
 0808 506 1688
	Victimsupport.org.uk

The National Domestic Abuse 
Helpline 
 0808 200 0247

NHS- non-urgent medical need
 111   
	www.111.nhs.uk/

16 

Skyline Summer 2022 www.southkesteven.gov.uk

98



Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2022-23 

Chairman: Councillor Sarah Trotter 

Vice Chairman: Councillor Barry Dobson 

REPORT TITLE ISSUE PURPOSE ORIGINATED 
 

CORPORATE PRIORITY 
 

5 October 2022 

Regulatory compliance Update to be provided at each 
meeting for the duration of the non-
compliance notice. To include 
Tenant Engagement Feedback. 
 
Lead Officer: 
Andrew Cotton (Director for 
Housing and Property 
 

To evidence progress 
and actions undertaken. 

Requested to be a 
standing item on the 
agenda by the Committee 
on 11 March 2021. 

Housing that meets the 
needs of all residents 

Cost of living 
pressures  

Update and seek comment on 
actions taken to support residents 
facing financial pressures. 
Lead Officer: Claire Moses 

To provide Committee 
with information on 
current financial pressure 
on residents of the 
District, and the actions 
taken by the Council to 
provide support  

Requested by the 
Chairman  

Healthy and Strong 
communities 

Communication with 
tenants across the 
Council 
 

Lead Officer:  
Andrew Cotton/Craig Spence 

To provide Committee 
with information on the 
range of communication 
methods tenants can use 
to engage with the 
Council as their landlord  

Requested by the 
Committee at the meeting 
June 2022   

Housing that meets the 
needs of all residents 

8 December 2022 

99

A
genda Item

 11



 
 

REPORT TITLE ISSUE PURPOSE ORIGINATED 
 

CORPORATE PRIORITY 
 

Equalities Annual 
Position Statement 

Lead Officer: 
Carol Drury (Community 
Engagement and Policy 
Development Officer) 
 

To share the Equalities 
Annual Position 
Statement for 2021/22 for 
comment prior to its 
publication.  The 
publication of this 
document is a 
requirement under the 
Equality Act 2010. 

Brought to the Rural and 
Communities OSC 
annually to allow for 
comment from Members 

High Performing 
Council 

Lincolnshire Health 
and Wellbeing 
Strategy  

Lead Officer: Karen Whitfield  To consider the work 
undertaken to develop a 
County wide health and 
wellbeing strategy and to 
provide a 
recommendation to 
Cabinet on its adoption. 

  

Progress report on 
Housing Allocation 
Policy and Choice-
based lettings 

Lead Officer:  
Andrew Cotton (Director for 
Housing and Property 
 

   

Armed Forces – 
Advocacy and 
Community 
Engagement 

Lead Officer:  
Carol Drury and Debbie Nicholls 
 

   

Capital Programme – 
Heating 

Lead Officer:  
Andrew Cotton/Craig Spence 

   

9 February 2023 

100



 
 

REPORT TITLE ISSUE PURPOSE ORIGINATED 
 

CORPORATE PRIORITY 
 

Demonstration of new 
housing management 
system 

Lead Officer:  
Andrew Cotton/Craig Spence 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Unscheduled Items 

Report title Issue Originated Corporate Priority 

Landlords Forum 
 
Private Sector Housing 

TBC 
 
 

 Housing that 
meets the 
needs of all 
residents 

HRA Business Plan  Requested by the Director 
of Housing and Property 

Housing that 
meets the 
needs of all 
residents 

CCG/ULHT – Pandemic 
lessons learnt and 
experiences 

TBC 
 
 
 

Requested by the Chairman 
 

Healthy 
and strong 
communities 

101



 
 

Housing Service Repair 
Policy 

The chargeable policy report provides guidance 
on how the council will identify, calculate and 
administrate charges for undertaking repairs to its 
housing stock that are not its responsibility as the 
landlord. 
 
Lead Officer: Julie Martin (Head of Housing 
Technical Services) 

Requested by the Chairman 
 

Housing the Meets the 
Needs of all Residents 

 
The Committee’s Remit 

 
The remit of the Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be to work alongside Cabinet Members to assist with the 
development of policy and to scrutinise decisions in respect of, but not limited to: 
 

• Anti-social Behaviour 

• Assisted Garden Maintenance Scheme 

• Benefit Claims 

• Community Cohesion 

• Community Funding & Volunteering 

• Community Right to Bid 

• Community Safety and Local Policing 

• Customer Services 

• DASH Landlord Accreditation Scheme 

• Disabled Facilities Grant 

• Empty Homes Assistance 

• Empty Homes Discount 

• Equalities and Diversity 

• Essential Home Repair Assistance 

• Gravitas Housing 

• Health 

• Homelessness 

• Housing Management, Improvement and Repairs 

• Housing Partnership 

• HR and Organisational Development 

• Landlords Forum 

• Parish and Town Council Liaison 

• Procurement 

• Safeguarding 

• Well-being 

102


	Agenda
	4 Minutes from the meeting held on 23 June 2022
	Minutes

	5 Minutes from the Joint Meeting of the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 27 June 2022
	Minutes

	6 Updates from the previous meeting
	8 Housing Regulatory Compliance Update
	Appendix One
	Appendix Two

	9 Cost of Living Strategy
	Appendix One
	Appendix Two

	10 Communication with tenants across the Council
	Appendix One
	Appendix Two
	Appendix Three
	Appendix Four

	11 Work Programme 2022-2023

